





From: Huey, Andrew (Protected) <andrew.huey@niaa.gov.au>

Sent: Tuesday, 1 November 2022 10:38 AM

To: Huey, Andrew <Andrew.Huey@oric.gov.au>

Subject: FW: PBC rule book requirements - Top End Default [SEC=OFFICIAL]

OFFICIAL

From: Kerrigan, Rachel <Rachel.Kerrigan@niaa.gov.au>
Sent: Monday, 31 October 2022 6:15 PM

To: Huey, Andrew <Andrew.Huey@niaa.gov.au>; SRCIUII (Unclassified)

Subject: PBC rule book requirements - Top End Default [SEC=OFFICIAL]

OFFICIAL

Hi Andrew and-

| know we briefly touched on Top End Default at our last catch up. | recall that ORIC was planning
to talk to NLC back at the end of last year/start of this year, but I’'m not sure how far this
progressed (and with staff changes at NLC etc, the current staff aren’t aware of these discussions).
| wanted to check if you had any further information about any discussions with NLC or
consideration about the Top End Default arrangement to date? | am keen to discuss implications
and consider how to progress ahead of further discussion with the NLC — would you have some
time later this week we could discuss?

Thanks
Rachel

Rachel Kerrigan | Branch Manager
Land Branch | National Indigenous Australians Agency

Charles Perkins House 16 Bowes Place Phillip ACT 2606
W. WWW.niaa.gov.au w. indigenous.gov.au







From: Harriet Roberts

To: Huey, Andrew (Protected)

ce ST X

Subject: 221118 Letter from NLC CEO to ORIC - Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC [NLC-
NLC.FID23595]

Date: Friday, 18 November 2022 11:11:41 AM

Attachments: image001.png

221118 Letter from NLC CEO to ORIC - Top End PBC(469443.1).pdf

Dear Mr Huey

Please find attached correspondence from the Northern Land Council CEO for your attention.
Kind regards

Harriet

Harriet Roberts

Lawyer
Northern Land Council

cid:image001.jpg@01D3D70F.1D3FD440

45 Mitchell St, Darwin NT 0800

GPO Box 1222, Darwin NT 0801

s22(1)

Email: roberh@nlc.org.au | Website: www.nlc.org.au

Disclaimer

The information contained in this communication from the sender is confidential. It is intended solely for
use by the recipient and others authorized to receive it. If you are not the recipient, you are hereby
notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution or taking action in relation of the contents of this
information is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful.

This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived by
Mimecast Ltd, an innovator in Software as a Service (SaaS) for business. Providing a safer and more
useful place for your human generated data. Specializing in; Security, archiving and compliance. To find
out more Click Here.



18 November 2022 Our ref: TED-000-395

Office of the Registrar of Indigenous Corporations
Level 1, Charles Perkins House

16 Bowes Place

Woden ACT 2606

Attention: Andrew Huey
Deputy Registrar

By email only: Andrew.Huey(@niaa.gov.au

Dear Mr Huey

Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC - compliance with section
141-25(2) of the Corporations (Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander) Act 2006 (Cth)

1. I refer to the amendments made by the Native Title Legislation Amendment Act 2021
(Cth) (the Amendments) to the Corporations (Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander)
Act 2006 (Cth) (CATSI Act).

2. The Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC (ICN 7848) (Top
End PBC) is the prescribed body corporate (PBC) for 86 approved determinations of
native title in the Northern Land Council’s (NLC) region.

3. Pursuant to standing instructions, the NLC provides native title services, including
administrative, anthropological and legal services to the Top End PBC in respect of each
determination for which it has been appointed, as well as associated corporate services
in respect of the administration of the Top End PBC generally.

4. The NLC is currently preparing a revised rulebook for the Top End PBC (Rulebook) to
comply with the Amendments. However, the NLC has become aware that there may be
significant consequences for the operations of the Top End PBC as a result of the new
requirement under s 141-25(2) of the CATSI Act for direct or indirect representation of
all common law holders within a PBC’s membership.

5. On advice, I write to you with some urgency to:
(a) alert your Office to the compliance issue faced by the Top End PBC;

(b) describe the Top End PBC’s proposal for reform of its Rulebook;

(c) outline policy factors for ORIC’s consideration in assessing the Top End PBC’s
compliance with s 141-25(2); and

(d) request a meeting with our Office to discuss this matter in detail.
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Top End PBC model

6.

10.

1.

12.

As you would be aware, there are significant differences in the practical experiences of
those PBCs that hold native title over areas subject to major compensable future acts
(such as the grants of interests associated with mining or urban development) and those
PBCs that hold native title over areas where there is little or no prospect of such
activity. Those PBCs in the former category will generally have a source of
income from agreements, and can thus employ staff to handle administrative
requirements, whereas those PBCs in the latter category have no such income and
are rarely required to adequately perform PBC functions.

The majority of the native title determinations in the NLC’s region are determinations of
non-exclusive native title rights and interests over lands and waters subject to pastoral
leases. In this regard, for most native title groups in the NLC’s region, unless and until
there are compensable land use developments on their country, their PBC is a formality,
and functions only to hold their native title as agent for the purposes of the Native Title
Act 1993 (Cth) (NTA).

For decades, throughout its region, the NLC has witnessed Aboriginal associations and
corporations that do not generate income or employ staff, and whose only role is to hold
title, struggle to meet their compliance obligations. The NLC has regularly had to assist
these organisations, in order to protect their underlying title for the benefit of Aboriginal
constituents.

The Top End PBC was established in light of the above resourcing issues, and in
acknowledgement of the circumstances facing most native title groups in the NLC’s
region. The Top End PBC is available to common law holders who do not have the
resources, capacity or desire to establish a secure, functional and well-run corporation.

The Top End PBC draws on the effective model established under the Aboriginal Land
Rights (Northern Territory) Act 1976 (Cth) (ALRA), where a regionally representative
group of Aboriginal people (the NLC Executive Council) is responsible for ensuring that
all affected native title holders are identified, their traditional decision-making processes
(if any) are followed, and their consents or other native title decisions are properly
obtained and recorded. The Top End PBC is able to draw on the institutional knowledge
and resources of the NLC to assist it to carry out its functions.

The Top End PBC is available to common law holders as a default option, but it is always
a choice for common law holders as to whether to make use of the model or not. The
NLC assists common law holders to establish separate corporations as PBCs if they so
wish (for example, the NLC has recently assisted a group of clan leaders from Blue Mud
Bay in South East Arnhem Land to establish the Djalkiripuyngu Aboriginal Corporation,
and is consulting common law holders of the Blue Mud Bay determination as to whether
they wish to appoint this corporation as their PBC.)

The Top End PBC model has proven to be effective: it has a strong record of
compliance with legislative requirements, as well as a proud history of effectively
and efficiently discharging its native title obligations to common law holders over the
many years of its operation.
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Compliance issue faced by the Top End PBC

13.

14.

15.

As you are aware, the Amendments inserted s 141-25(2) into the CATSI Act, which
requires that “the constitution [of a registered native title body corporate] must include
eligibility requirements for membership that provide for all the common law holders of
native title to be represented, directly or indirectly.” The Top End PBC must amend its
Rulebook by 25 March 2023 to comply with this change and any other requirements of
the Amendments.

The Top End PBC’s constitution currently only permits the members of the NLC
Executive Council to be members of the PBC. Members of the Executive Council may
or may not be common law holders of one or more determinations for which the Top End
PBC has been appointed.

Unlike other regions in Australia, the nature of the traditional Aboriginal laws and
customs in the NLC’s region mean that native title determinations are made on a smaller
scale (generally the area of a single pastoral lease, involving a handful of estate groups).
As aresult, there are a very large number of relatively small determinations. It would not
be feasible for the NLC to develop a model of representative membership whereby each
estate group nominates representatives for the Top End PBC. This would require the
expenditure of significant time and resources by the NLC, and would likely result in
some groups being locked in dispute over membership nominations. It would also have
other administratively burdensome and ongoing consequences, such as mandatory Top
End PBC annual general meetings involving an extraordinarily large number of invited
members.

Proposed Rulebook changes

16.

17.

18.

19.

While it is unfeasible for the Top End PBC to provide for representative membership in
respect of each individual determination for which it has been appointed, it is the NLC’s
position that the Top End PBC already provides indirect representation for all common
law holders across the seven administrative regions in the NLC’s representative body
area where there are native title claims or determinations (East Arnhem Land, West
Arnhem Land, Victoria River District, Darwin Daly Wagait, Katherine, Ngukurr, and
Borroloola Barkly).

This is so because the members of the NLC Executive Council have a representative role
in relation to all Aboriginal people, and by extension all common law holders, of the
NLC’s area.

Members of the NLC must be Aboriginal people with a residential or traditional
connection to the NLC’s area. The Executive Council is elected from within this
representative membership.

As people with a traditional connection to the NLC’s area, every single common law
holder represented by the Top End PBC is entitled to participate in, and be elected to, the
NLC’s membership and the Executive Council. At any given time, a number of the
members of the Executive Council will also be common law holders represented by the
Top End PBC.
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20.

21.

The members of the Top End PBC are members by virtue of their holding office in the
NLC Executive Council. The NLC Executive Council exercises broad powers of the
NLC pursuant to delegation, including powers relating to assisting Aboriginals in the
area of the NLC to protect sacred sites and carry out commercial activities, as well as
facilitation and assistance, dispute resolution and notification functions under the NTA.
The NLC Executive Council members carry out their functions as members of the Top
End PBC with the basis of their appointment firmly in mind.

The NLC proposes to embed this existing practice within the Top End PBC’s governance
rules to ensure compliance with s 141-25(2). This would be done through amending the
Top End PBC’s constitution to create a direct requirement for the members and directors
to act in a representative capacity for all of the common law holders for which the PBC
has been appointed, and wherever possible to act in a manner which is consistent with
the functions of the NLC under the ALRA and the NTA.

Policy considerations

22.

23.

24.

25.

In addition to being an innovative, effective and regionally appropriate PBC model, as
outlined above, I wish to draw your attention to a number of policy factors which ORIC
may wish to consider in assessing the Top End PBC’s compliance with s 141-25(2).

Firstly, the Top End PBC model is consistent with the policy goals of s 141-25(2). The
NLC understands that the goal of this amendment was to address situations where some
common law holders were improperly preventing other common law holders from
participating in the management of native title and benefits received through the native
title process. The Top End PBC model is wholly consistent with this goal, as the NLC’s
Executive Council is representative of the region as a whole, and therefore divorced from
the intramural politics of any given group of common law holders. By having
representation at the regional level, the risk of members and directors having an
individual stake in decisions is reduced. They are instead focused on obtaining the best
outcomes for the relevant common law holders as a whole, and on compliance with the
consultation obligations under the Native Title (Prescribed Bodies Corporate)
Regulations 1999 (Cth).

Secondly, as far as the NLC is aware, the Amendments were drafted without
consideration of their implications for the Top End PBC model. I regard it as highly
unlikely that Parliament intended to make the Top End PBC model unworkable by these
Amendments.

Thirdly, and perhaps most significantly, if the Amendments are interpreted in a way
which would make it unfeasible for the Top End PBC to continue to operate, there would
be a need for a new PBC to be appointed for each of the 86 determinations currently
stewarded by the Top End PBC. The resourcing ramifications for the native title system,
ORIC and the Courts would be very significant, and all for little practical gain in the
regional context of the northern half of the Northern Territory, where common law
holders are well-served by the existing PBC.
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Request for meeting

26. We would be grateful for the opportunity to discuss this issue with you in further detail.
For the purpose of arranging a time to meet, may I ask that your office contact FEEIlJ

I L cgal Practice Manager — Native Title on Syl ©ic.org.au.

We look forward to your response in due course. If you have any questions about this matter
prior to our meeting, please contact SIS

Yours sincerely

JOE MARTIN-JARD
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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From: Stroud, Tricia

To: Huey. Andrew

Subject: RE: 221118 Letter from NLC CEO to ORIC - Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC [NLC-
NLC.FID23595] [SEC=OFFICIAL]

Date: Friday, 18 November 2022 4:38:31 PM

Wonder whether we have a one on one with them first and give a commitment to facilitate Land
Branch (and maybe even AGD) afterwards. We could use the initial meeting to hear out their
issues ands suggestions.

From: Huey, Andrew (Protected) <andrew.huey@niaa.gov.au>

Sent: Friday, 18 November 2022 3:21 PM

To: Huey, Andrew <Andrew.Huey@oric.gov.au>; Stroud, Tricia <Tricia.Stroud@oric.gov.au>
Subject: Fwd: 221118 Letter from NLC CEO to ORIC - Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal
Corporation RNTBC [NLC-NLC.FID23595]

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Harriet Roberts <RoberH@nlc.org.au>

Date: 18 November 2022 at 11:11:41 am AEDT

To: "Huey, Andrew" <Andrew.Huey@niaa.gov.au>

Cc:_ <- nlc.or .au>,_ <- nlc.org.au>
Subject: 221118 Letter from NLC CEO to ORIC - Top End (Default PBC/CLA)
Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC [NLC-NLC.FID23595]

Dear Mr Huey

Please find attached correspondence from the Northern Land Council CEO for your
attention.

Kind regards
Harriet

Harriet Roberts

Lawyer
Northern Land Council

45 Mitchell St, Darwin NT 0800
GPO Box 1222, Darwin NT 0801

Email: roberh@nlc.org.au | Website: www.nlc.org.au



Disclaimer

The information contained in this communication from the sender is confidential. It is
intended solely for use by the recipient and others authorized to receive it. If you are not
the recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution or taking
action in relation of the contents of this information is strictly prohibited and may be
unlawful.

This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically
archived by Mimecast Ltd, an innovator in Software as a Service (SaaS) for business.
Providing a safer and more useful place for your human generated data. Specializing in;
Security, archiving and compliance. To find out more Click Here.



From: Huey, Andrew

To:

Cc: Stroud, Tricia;

Subject: FW: 221118 Letter from NLC CEO to ORIC - Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC
[NLC-NLC.FID23595] [SEC=OFFICIAL]

Date: Monday, 21 November 2022 4:06:32 PM

Attachments: image001.png

221118 Letter from NLC CEO to ORIC - Top End PBC(469443.1).pdf

Hi SRRl e had a meeting today about the attached corro.

Can you please reach out to the NLC and set up a meeting for us to discuss their
correspondence?

We will then need to consult with NIAA and AGD, could you please set up a second meeting with
ORIC, NIAA Land Branch and ADG at a date after the NLC meeting. The Land Branch should be
able to provide the best contact for ADG, | would suggest trying Rachel Kerrigan’s EA.

We will then most likely need a third meeting but will await the outcome of the second meeting,
| will come back to you abut third meeting in the near future.

Thanks, Andrew

From: Huey, Andrew

Sent: Friday, 18 November 2022 4:27 PM

To: SN S 2 oric sov.au>

Subject: FW: 221118 Letter from NLC CEO to ORIC - Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal
Corporation RNTBC [NLC-NLC.FID23595] [SEC=OFFICIAL]

From: Huey, Andrew (Protected) <andrew.huey@niaa.gov.au>

Sent: Friday, 18 November 2022 4:21 PM

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

ce: SRR S @ c.orcou>, EENERN BBl 2 c orc.au>
Subject: 221118 Letter from NLC CEO to ORIC - Top End (Default PBC/CLA)
Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC [NLC-NLC.FID23595]

oeor EREEN

Please find attached correspondence from the Northern Land Council CEO for your
attention.

Kind regards

Harriet

Harriet Roberts

Lawyer
Northern Land Council
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From:
To:

Cc:
Subject:

Harriet Roberts
RE: Response locking in a time to discuss Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC
[SEC=OFFICIAL] [NLC-NLC.FID3043]
Date: Wednesday, 30 November 2022 3:59:51 PM
Attachments: image010.png
image011.png
image012.png
image002.png
image003.png
image004.png

Thanks-

Perhaps you could create a Teams meeting, send me the link, and | will forward to Joe and-?

At the meeting, Joe and- will be joined by NLC lawyers (one or more of-, Harriet or
myself).

Kind regards

— Native Title

Northern Land Council

cid:image(001.jpg@01D3D70F.1D3FD440
|

45 Mitchell St, Darwin NT 0801
GPO Box 1222, Darwin NT 0801
| F: +61 8 8920 5251

Email @nlc.org.au | Website: www.nlc.org.au

From: EEENMIN NN o' c <07 21>

Sent: Wednesday, 30 November 2022 8:44 AM

To:_ <-@nlc.org.au>
Cc:_ <-@nlc.org.au>; Harriet Roberts <RoberH@nlc.org.au>

Subject: Response locking in a time to discuss Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation
RNTBC [SEC=0OFFICIAL]

i S

At this stage, we would like to go with Thursday 15 December at 9am. Would you like me to send
through a Teams invitation directly to Joe and -?
Regards

_ | Executive Assistant | Registrar

Office of the Registrar of Indigenous Corporations

B | irccc:l| 1500 622 431

Turrbal and Yuggera Country Level 19, 215 Adelaide Street QLD 4000 | PO Box 29 WODEN ACT 2606



oric.gov.au

ORIC acknowledges the traditional custodians of country throughout Australia and their continuing
connection to land, waters and community. We pay our respect to them and their cultures and to
their elders both past and present.

erom: EENER N . < 2.

Sent: Monday, 28 November 2022 10:28 AM

C _ <-@nlc org.au>; Harriet Roberts <RoberH@nlc.org.au>
Subject: RE: Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC - proposed meeting to

discuss compliance [SEC=OFFICIAL] [NLC-NLC.FID3043]

Good morning-

The NLC CEO is available at the following times on the week starting Monday 12 December:

e Wednesday 14 Dec at 11am or 3:30pm
e Thursday 15 Dec at 9am or after 1pm.
Perhaps there is a time in there that is suitable for the Registrar and her team?

Kind regards

— Native Title

Northern Land Council

45 Mitchell St, Darwin NT 0801
GPO Box 1222, Darwin NT 0801

| F: +61 8 8920 5251
Email: @nlc.org.au | Website: www.nlc.org.au

From: SRR

Sent: Wednesday, 23 November 2022 11:00 AM



Cc._ -Mga_> Harriet Roberts <RoberH@nlc.org.au>
Subject: RE: Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC - proposed meeting to

discuss compliance [SEC=OFFICIAL] [NLC-NLC.FID3043]
all-22(1)

| will inquire into Joe and- availability and get back to you.

Kind regards

— Native Title
Northern Land Council

45 Mitchell St, Darwin NT 0801
GPO Box 1222, Darwin NT 0801

| F: +61 8 8920 5251
Email: @nlc.org.au | Website: www.nlc.org.au

From: EEN - <. -.>

Sent: Wednesday, 23 November 2022 10:24 AM

To: SN S\ orc o>
Cc:_ -@nlc.org.au>; Harriet Roberts <RoberH@nlc.org.au>
Subject: RE: Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC - proposed meeting to

discuss compliance [NLC-NLC.FID3043] [SEC=OFFICIAL]

Good morning-,

The Registrar has advised that she is happy to meet when Joe Martin-Jard and IR "¢
available. If you could give me details of their availability and we can then work out a suitable
time?

Thanks

_ | Executive Assistant | Registrar

Office of the Registrar of Indigenous Corporations

SN | r<ccol| 1500 622 431

Turrbal and Yuggera Country | Level 19, 215 Adelaide Street QLD 4000 | PO Box 29 WODEN ACT 2606
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



Sent: Tuesday, 22 November 2022 3:35 PM
To:
Ce: @nlc.org.au>; Harriet Roberts <RoberH@nlc.orgau>

Subject: Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC - proposed meeting to discuss
compliance [NLC-NLC.FID3043]

| refer to our telephone conversation earlier today about this matter.

@oric.gov.au>

The NLC’s Chief Executive Officer (Joe Martin-Jard) and Principal Legal Ofﬁcer_ are
interested in attending the proposed meeting with the Registrar, Deputy Registrar, and General
Counsel of ORIC. Unfortunately, however, they both have prior commitments in remote locations
during the relevant period.

Instead, | have been asked to attend the meeting, and | will be joined by NLC Iawyers_
and Harriet Roberts (both copied).

At this stagc,-, Harriet and | are available on either Monday 28 November or Friday 2
December, at any time that suits ORIC.

| would be grateful if, in due course, you could confirm the meeting date and time, and send
through Microsoft Teams invitations to-, Harriet and me.

Kind regards

~ Native Title
Northern Land Councll

45 Mitchell St, Darwin NT 0801
GPO Box 1222, Darwin NT 0801

| F: +61 8 8920 5251
Email: @NiC.0rg.au | Webste: www,nic,org.au
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This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived by
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IMPORTANT: This message, and any attachments to it, contains information
that is confidential and may also be the subject of legal professional or

other privilege. If you are not the intended recipient of this message, you
must not review, copy, disseminate or disclose its contents to any other
party or take action in reliance of any material contained within it. If you
have received this message in error, please notify the sender immediately by
return email informing them of the mistake and delete all copies of the
message from your computer system.
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From:
To:

Cc:
Subject:

Huey. Andrew; Stroud Tricia;-

Placeholder Response required: Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC - proposed
meeting to discuss compliance [NLC-NLC.FID3043] [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Date: Wednesday, 30 November 2022 10:12:09 AM
Attachments: image006.png

image007.png

image008.png

image009.png

image010.jpg

image011.png

image012.png

image013.png

image014.jpg

HI

| am going to respond to- and lock in Thursday 15 December 9am Brisbane time. | don’t
think- had an opportunity to respond to me but | can see his diary is free.

| have sent a placeholder in your diaries for the moment.

Regards

_ | Executive Assistant | Registrar

Office of the Registrar of Indigenous Corporations

O | << 1500622 31

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

From: Huey, Andrew <Andrew.Huey@oric.gov.au>
Sent: Monday, 28 November 2022 10:47 AM

To: SEE N o <0v.2.>

Subject: RE: Response required: Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC -
proposed meeting to discuss compliance [NLC-NLC.FID3043] [SEC=0OFFICIAL]

Thanks-— that is fine for me. | do not need to attend the 11:30 if that helps.

Regards, Andrew

From: RN <. 21>



Sent: Monday, 28 November 2022 11:42 AM
To: Stroud, Tricia <Iricia.Stroud@oric. ov.au>;- <_@oric.gov.au>; Huey, Andrew

<Andrew.Huey@oric.gov.au>

Subject: Response required: Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC - proposed
meeting to discuss compliance [NLC-NLC.FID3043] [SEC=0OFFICIAL]

Good morning

Please see the new proposed dates and times below. | would be inclined to advise Thursday 15
December at 9am (Qld time). Andrew, we would just need to move an internal meeting.
Please let me know if you are happy with the Thursday?

Thanks

_ | Executive Assistant | Registrar

Office of the Registrar of Indigenous Corporations

EEEIE I | ccc:l| 1500 622 431

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

erom: SRR BN ¢ 20>

Sent: Monday, 28 November 2022 10:28 AM

Cc._ <-@nlc org.au>; Harriet Roberts< oberH@nlc.org.au>
Subject: RE: Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC - proposed meeting to

discuss compliance [SEC=0OFFICIAL] [NLC-NLC.FID3043]

Good morning SN

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

- Native Title
Northern Land Council

45 Mitchell St, Darwin NT 0801
GPO Box 1222, Darwin NT 0801

| F: +61 8 8920 5251
@nic.org.au | Website: www.nic.org.au

ror: RN

Sent: Wednesday, 23 November 2022 11:00 AM

@ornc.gov.au>

o SHD
c: [ B 1 \c.o12.au>; Harriet Roberts <RoberH@nlc.org.au>

Subject: RE: Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC - proposed meeting to
discuss compliance [SEC=OFFICIAL] [INLC-NLC.FID3043)

| will inquire into Joe and- availability and get back to you.

Kind regards

~ Native Title

Northern Land Council

45 Mitchell St. Darwin NT 0801
GPO Box 1222, Darwin NT 0801

| F: +#61 8 8920 5251
@nic.org.au | Website: wyww.nic,org.au

Sent: Wednesday, 23 November 2022 10:24 AM

To: @nlc.org.au>
Cce: @nlc.org.au>; Harriet Roberts <RoberH@nlc org.au>

Subject: RE: Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC - proposed meeting to
discuss compliance [NLC-NLC.FID3043] [SEC=OFFICIAL]



Good morning SRR

The Registrar has advised that she is happy to meet when Joe Martin-Jard and_ are
available. If you could give me details of their availability and we can then work out a suitable
time?

Thanks

_ | Executive Assistant | Registrar

Office of the Registrar of Indigenous Corporations

SO | <o 1500622 231

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

From: EENER N .- 20>

Sent: Tuesday, 22 November 2022 3:35 PM

Cc._ <-@n|c org.au>; Harriet Roberts< oberH@nlc.org.au>
Subject: Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC - proposed meeting to discuss

compliance [NLC-NLC.FID3043]

oo S

| refer to our telephone conversation earlier today about this matter.

The NLC’s Chief Executive Officer (Joe Martin-Jard) and Principal Legal Officer _) are
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

At this stage,-, Harriet and | are available on either Monday 28 November or Friday 2
December, at any time that suits ORIC.

| would be grateful if, in due course, you could confirm the meeting date and time, and send



through Microsoft Teams invitations to[Jij. Harriet and me.

Kind regards

~ Native Title
Northern Land Council
45 Mitchell St, Darwin NT 0801

GPO Box 1222, Darwin NT 0801

| F: +61 8 8920 5251
7 @nic.org.au | Website: www.nic.org.au

Disclaimer

The information contained in this communication from the sender is confidential. It i intended solely for
use by the recipient and others authorized to recelve It. If you are not the reciplent, you are hereby
notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution or taking action in relation of the contents of this
information is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful

This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived by
Mimecast Ltd, an innovator in Software as a Service (SaaS) for business. Providing a safer and more
useful place for your human generated data. Specializing in; Security, archiving and compliance. To find

out more Click Here

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

I'he information contained in this communication from the sender is confidential. It is intended solely for
use by the recipient and others authorized to receive it. If you are not the recipient, you are hereby
notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution or taking action in relation of the contents of this
information &s strictly prohibited and may be unlawful.

This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived by
Mimecast Ltd, an innovator in Software as a Service (SaaS) for business. Providing a safer and more
useful place for your human generated data, Specializing in; Security, archiving and compliance, To find

out more Click Here



Subject: NLC discussion - Top End compliance meeting [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Location: Microsoft Teams Meeting

Start: Thu 15/12/2022 10:30 AM

End: Thu 15/12/2022 11:00 AM

Recurrence: (none)

Meeting Status: Meeting organizer

Organizer: Stroud, Tricia

Required Attendees: Stroud, Tricia; Huey, Andrew; ;_
Optional Attendees: Joe Martin-Jard;

Thanks-

Perhaps you could create a Teams meeting, send me the link, and | will forward to Joe and-?

At the meeting, Joe and- will be joined by NLC lawyers (one or more of-, Harriet or myself).

Kind regards

— Native Title

Northern Land Council

NORTHERN
LAND COUNCIL

i g i g et Eeskm

45 Mitchell St, Darwin NT 0801
GPO Box 1222, Darwin NT 0801
| F: +61 8 8920 5251

Email: SEiEl] @nlc.org.au | Website: www.nlc.org.au

Microsoft Teams meeting

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device
Click here to join the meeting

Meeting ID: 427 566 714 234

Passcode: hvMZr9
Download Teams | Join on the web

Join with a video conferencing device

762430305@t.plcm.vc
Video Conference ID: 136 414 400 2
Alternate VTC instructions




Or call in (audio only)
+61 2 8318 0003,,369334800# Australia, Sydney

Phone Conference ID: 369 334 800#
Find a local number | Reset PIN

Learn More | Meeting options




From:

To: Huey, Andrew
Cc:
Subject: RE: Top End Default Discussion [SEC=0OFFICIAL]
Date: Friday, 16 December 2022 6:40:25 AM
Attachments: image001.png
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Thanks Andrew —villdo and notine X

Coincidentally after our meeting AN from NIAA PBC Policy called me for an update which |
gave, though will follow up in writing.- said based on this status they would be happy to have
a preliminary meeting with ORIC in January, perhaps once we have looked at the rule book and |
will progress these things.

Cheers

From: Huey, Andrew <Andrew.Huey@oric.gov.au>
Sent: Thursday, 15 December 2022 6:21 PM

To:_@oric.gov.au>

c- A - - - - A
_@ofﬂcial.niaa.gov.au>; _@oric.gov.au>; Stroud,
Tricia <Tricia.Stroud@oric.gov.au>; SEAEN G ¢ oric cov.ov>; EEEAGIEE
_@oric.gov.au>

Subject: RE: Top End Default Discussion [SEC=OFFICIAL]

Hi [jill following our meeting today can | please leave this one with you to follow up with the
NIAA.

My reading of the meeting was a meeting late Jan/early Feb with NIAA, ADG, NLC and ORIC to
discuss option of amending regs. | expect a pre-meeting will also be required to make sure NIAA,
ADG and ORIC are all on the same page.

NLC is to provide a draft copy of the update Rule Book for ORIC to review and provide any
feedback.

Regords, SN
From: RN - <. 2.

Sent: Wednesday, 14 December 2022 9:15 AM
To: Huey, Andrew <Andrew.Huev@oric.fzov.au>;_@oric.gov.au>




_@ofﬂcial.niaa.gov.aw

Subject: RE: Top End Default Discussion [SEC=OFFICIAL]

Yes Andrew. No worries.

_ | Senior Native Title Engagement Officer, Native Title Unit

Office of the Registrar of Indigenous Corporations

SR | <ccol 1500 622 431

Level 7, Citi Central Building, 46-48 Sheridan Street, Cairns QLD 4870 | PO Box 29 WODEN ACT 2606

oric. gov.au

The department acknowledges the traditional custodians of country throughout Australia and their
continuing connection to land, waters and community. We pay our respect to them and their
cultures and to their elders both past and present.

From: Huey, Andrew <Andrew.Huey@oric.gov.au>
Sent: Wednesday, 14 December 2022 7:34 AM

_@ofﬁcial.niaa.gov‘aw

Subject: RE: Top End Default Discussion [SEC=OFFICIAL]

Hi [l s it ok to wait until Jjiilj is back from leave?

Regards, Andrew

From: EEEEMI -SRI - - <0 2.

Sent: Tuesday, 13 December 2022 3:02 PM

To: Huey, Andrew <Andrew.Huey@oric.gov.au>; - <- oric.gov.au>

Subject: FW: Top End Default Discussion [SEC=0OFFICIAL]

Hi team

Can we organise a meeting to discuss?



_l Senior Native Title Engagement Officer, Native Title Unit

Office of the Registrar of Indigenous Corporations

SO | irccc:| 1500 622 431

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

From: SRR . ;. -.>

Sent: Tuesday, 13 December 2022 1:37 PM

Subject: Top End Default Discussion [SEC=OFFICIAL]

OFFICIAL

Hi [

Do you have some time in the next week or so to discuss Top End Default? We are keen to follow

up and see where things are at, and also see where NIAA can support this work. Please let me
know when might suit, and also who from ORIC we should invite. We’re happy to work around
your availabilities.

Cheers,
-
I

Director

PBC Policy | Land Branch | Economic Policy and Programs Group
National Indigenous Australians Agency

Ww. hiaa.gov.au w. indigenous.gov.au
Charles Perkins House, Woden ACT| PO Box 6500 CANBERRA ACT 2600







From: Harriet Roberts

To: Huey, Andrew (Protected)

Subject: Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC - Amended rule book [NLC-NLC.FID23595]
Date: Friday, 23 December 2022 4:17:56 PM

Attachments: image001.png

221223 Amended Top End PBC Rule Book - For ORIC(476563.1).docx

Dear Mr Huey

Thank you for your time on 15 December 2022 to discuss amendments to the rule book of the
Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC (the Top End PBC).

As discussed at that meeting, please find attached the Top End PBC’s amended rule book for
ORIC's consideration.

We will also be in touch in the new year to discuss potential dates for a meeting with ORIC, NIAA
and AGD.

Please let us know if you have any questions or would like to discuss.
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



THE
RULE
BOOK

This rule book complies with the Corporations (Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander)
Act 2006 (Cth).



Top End (Default
PBC/CLA) Aboriginal
Corporation RNTBC

ICN: 7848

This rule book complies with the Corporations (Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander)
Act 2006 (Cth).



The rule book contents
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1. Name
The name of the Corporation is: Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal
Corporation RNTBC.

2. Objectives
2.1 Registered Native Title Body Corporate
The objectives of the Corporation in relation to native title are:

(a) to be an RNTBC regarding land and waters for the purposes of the Native Title
Act;

(b) to act as agent for the native title holders in respect of matters relating to native
title;

(c) to manage the native title rights and interests of the native title holders as
authorised by the native title holders;

(d) to perform any other functions in relation to the native title rights and interests
as directed by the native title holders; and

(e) to hold any real or personal property (including money), including real or
personal property received by way of compensation or other consideration
payable in relation to the native title rights and interests, on trust, and to invest
or otherwise apply any money as directed by the native title holders.

Without limiting the generality of clauses (a) to (e) of this rule, for the purposes of
performing its functions the Corporation may, on behalf of the native title holders (and
as authorised by them), enter into agreements, be consulted, and exercise procedural
rights.

2.2  Community Living Areas

The objectives of the Corporation in relation to community living areas are:

(a) to be the owner of land (including any estate or interest in land, whether legal
or equitable) that is a community living area;

(b) to perform its functions as the owner of land that is a community living area
with due consideration to the interests of the native title holders, and the
residents, of that land; and

(c) to hold any real or personal property (including money), including real or
personal property received by way of compensation or other consideration
payable in relation to the community living area, on trust, and to invest or
otherwise apply any money with due consideration to the interests of the native
title holders, and the residents, of that land.

3. Members
3.1  Membership Model
(a) Eligibility for membership of the Corporation is confined to those persons who
are members of the Executive Council of the Northern Land Council (NLC), as
elected from time to time. Under this membership model, all common law
holders of native title are indirectly represented by the members of the Executive
Council.



(b) This membership model reflects aspects of the unique context in which the
Corporation functions, including that:

(1) asat31 December 2022, since the Corporation’s registration on 7 March
2013, the National Native Title Register records that the Corporation
has, at the request of the common law holders in each case, been
progressively appointed as agent PBC in relation to a total of 85
approved determinations of native title;

(1) all of these determinations relate to land and waters that are within the
area for which the NLC is the representative Aboriginal/Torres Strait
Islander body (RATSIB) under Part 11 of the Native Title Act;

(ii1)there are native title determinations located in every one of the seven
regions from which the members of the NLC’s governing Full Council
are elected, which together form the NLC’s area of responsibility as a
Land Council under the Aboriginal Land Rights (Northern Territory)
Act 1976 (Cth) (Land Rights Act); and

(iv)each of these native title determinations has been achieved with the
facilitation and assistance of the NLC, as the local RATSIB, in
accordance with section 203BB of the Native Title Act.

(c) In this context, the Corporation’s membership model operates in the following
way:

(1) In accordance with a method approved by the Minister of Indigenous
Australians under section 29 of the Land Rights Act, the members of the
NLC’s governing Full Council are elected or otherwise chosen by
Aboriginal people with a residential or traditional connection to the Top
End, being the NLC’s area of responsibility as a Land Council, which is
divided for administrative purposes into seven regions;

(i1) The NLC’s Executive Council is a committee appointed under section
29A of the Land Rights Act, with delegated authority to perform
particular statutory functions where it is not administratively necessary
or convenient for the Full Council to perform those functions itself;

(ii1)The members of the Executive Council are elected by the Full Council,
with two local members elected to represent each of the NLC’s seven
regions, so that there are generally 14 members of the Executive Council
at any one time;

(iv)Every existing common law holder of native title for whom the
Corporation has been appointed as agent PBC is eligible for election by
their co-constituents to the NLC Full Council, election by the Full
Council to the NLC Executive Council, and thus appointment to the
membership of the Corporation;

(v) All members of the Corporation hold office by virtue of their
membership of the NLC’s Full Council and Executive Council, and in
that same representative capacity must act at all times in the interests of
all the common law holders of native title on whose behalf of the
Corporation is appointed.



3.2  Whoiseligible?
A member of the Corporation must be:
(a) a member of the NLC Executive Council;
(b) at least 18 years of age; and
(c) an Aboriginal person.
3.3 How to become a member
A person applies in writing;
A person is eligible under rule 3.2;
The directors agree; and
The person’s name, address and date they became a member is put on the register of
members.
The directors must accept a membership application if the applicant has applied in
writing and the applicant meets the eligibility requirements in rule 3.2.
3.4 Members’ rights
A member can:
(a) attend, speak and vote at general meetings;
(b) be made a director;
(c) put forward resolutions at general meetings;
(d) ask the directors to call a general meeting; and
(e) look at the books and records of the Corporation (if the directors have authorised
them to do this, or if the members have passed a resolution which lets them do
this).
3.5 Members’ responsibilities
A member must:
(a) follow the Corporation rules;
(b) advise the Corporation if he or she changes his or her address;
(c) treat other members with respect; and
(d) at all times, exercise their rights as members in the following way:
(i) in arepresentative capacity for all of the common law holders for which
the Corporation has responsibility; and
(ii) for the benefit of, and in the best interests of, those common law holders.
3.6 Liability of members
Members do not have to pay Corporation debts if the Corporation is wound up.
3.7  How to stop being a member
A person stops being a member if:
(a) he or she resigns in writing;
(b) he or she dies; or
(c) his or her membership is cancelled.
The person’s name, address and date they stopped being a member is put on the register
of former members.
3.8  Cancelling membership
(a) A person’s membership may be cancelled by special resolution passed at a
general meeting if:



3.9

(1) the Corporation has not been able to contact the member at their address
entered on the register of members for a continuous period of 2 years
prior to the meeting, and the Corporation has made two or more
reasonable attempts to contact the member during the 2-year period but
has been unable to; or

(i1) the general meeting is satisfied that the member is not an Aboriginal
person; or

(ii1)the general meeting is satisfied that the member has behaved in a manner
that significantly interfered with the operation of the Corporation or of
Corporation meetings.

(b) A person’s membership may be cancelled by the directors by resolution at a
director’s meeting if a member is not eligible for membership or has ceased to
be eligible for membership.

(c) Before a membership is cancelled under rule 3.8(b), the directors must:

(1) take reasonable steps to make sure the member is not, or has stopped
being, eligible under rule 3.2; and

(i1) give the relevant member notice in writing stating that:

a. the directors intend to cancel the membership for the reasons set
out in the notice; and

b. the member has 14 days to object to the cancellation of
membership; and

c. any objection to the cancellation of membership must be in
writing and given to the Corporation within 14 days from the day
the notice was given.

(d) Ifthe directors propose to cancel the membership of a member under rule 3.8(b),
and:

(1) the relevant member does not object — the directors must cancel the
membership; or

(i1) the relevant member objects — the directors must not cancel the
membership and only the Corporation may cancel the membership by
resolution at a general meeting.

(e) If a person’s membership is cancelled by resolution under rule 3.8(a), (b) or
(d)(i1), the directors must give the member a copy of the resolution as soon as
practicable after the resolution has been passed (and, in the case of a member
who cannot be contacted, may do so by forwarding a copy of the resolution to
the last known address of the member).

The register of members and former members

The register must contain:

(a) members’ and former members’ names and addresses;
(b) the date when the names were put on the register; and
(c) for former members, the date when they stopped being a member.

The register must be kept at the Corporation’s document access address or registered
office. It must be available at the AGM.



4. Meetings
41  AGM timing
AGMs must be held before the end of November each year unless:
(a) the Registrar provides an exemption from holding the meeting or extends the
period within which the Corporation is required to hold it; or
(b) the CATSI Act provides otherwise.
4.2  AGM business
AGMs are for:
(a) confirming the minutes of the previous general meeting;
(b) checking the register of members;
(c) presenting reports: general, financial, directors’;
(d) electing directors;
(e) choosing an auditor (if required) and agreeing on the fee; and
(f) asking questions about how the Corporation is managed.
4.3  General meetings
The directors can call a general meeting or AGM by passing a resolution at a directors’
meeting or by a circulating resolution.
The required number of members can request the directors to call a general meeting.

Number of members Number of members

in Corporation required to ask for a general meeting
2 to 10 members =1 member

11 to 29 members = 3 members

The members’ request must:
e be in writing;
e state any resolutions to be proposed at the meeting—see rule 4.6;
e be signed by the members making the request;
e nominate a member to be the contact member on behalf of the members making
the request; and
e be given to the Corporation.
Within 21 days of receiving the request, the directors must either call the meeting
or apply to the Registrar to deny the request.
4.4  General meeting business
General meetings are for:
(a) confirming the minutes of the previous general meeting; and
(b) completing the business specified in the notice of the meeting.
4.5 Notice for general meetings
At least 21 days’ notice must be given.
Notice must be given to members, directors, officers, the contact person and the auditor
(if the Corporation has one).
The notice must set out:
e the place, date and time for the meeting;
e the business of the meeting;
e if a special resolution is being proposed, and what it is; and



e if a member can appoint a proxy.
Notices can be given to members personally, sent by post to their address, sent by fax
or sent by email.
A notice of meeting:

e sent by post is taken to be given three days after it is posted; or

e sent by fax, or other electronic means, is taken to be given on the business day

after it is sent.

A general meeting, or a notice of a general meeting which is required to be given
according to these rules, or any proceeding at a general meeting, is not invalidated
merely because of the accidental omission to give notice of the general meeting, or
because a person does not receive the notice of the general meeting.
46  Members’ resolutions
The required number of members can propose a resolution by giving notice
of it to the Corporation.

Number of members Number of members required to
in Corporation propose a resolution

2 to 10 members = 1 member

11 to 29 members = 3 members

The notice must set out the resolution in writing and must be signed by the members
proposing it.

The Corporation must give notice of the resolution to all people entitled to it (see rule
4.5).

The Corporation must consider the resolution at the next general meeting which is being
held more than 28 days after the notice has been sent out.

4.7 Quorum at general meetings

The number of members to make a quorum is five members.

The quorum must be present during the whole meeting. If there is no quorum after one
hour, the meeting is adjourned until the next week at the same time. If there is still no
quorum, the meeting is cancelled.

4.8  Chairing general meetings

The chairperson will chair general meetings. If the chairperson is not available, the
deputy chairperson will chair the meeting. If neither chairperson nor deputy chairperson
are available, the members must elect someone to chair the meeting.

4.9 Using technology

General meetings can be held at more than one place using any technology that gives
members as a whole a reasonable opportunity to participate.

4.10 Voting

Each member has one vote.

The chairperson has one vote (if he or she is a member) plus a casting vote.

A challenge to a right to vote at a general meeting may only be made at the meeting,
and must be determined by the chairperson, whose decision is final.



A resolution can be decided by majority on a show of hands, unless a poll is demanded.
(A poll is a formal vote, not by show of hands—for example, by writing on a voting
paper or placing marbles in labelled jars.)

The chairperson tells the meeting whether they have received any proxy votes and what
they are.

The chairperson declares the results of the vote, on a show of hands, or when a poll is
demanded.

4.11 Demanding a poll

Any member entitled to vote on the resolution or the chairperson can demand a poll.
A poll can be held before or after a show of hands vote.

A poll on the election of a chairperson or on the question of an adjournment must be
taken immediately. A poll demanded on other matters must be taken when and in the
manner the chairperson directs.

4.12  Proxies

Members can appoint another member as proxy to attend meetings and vote for them.
Proxies can also speak at meetings and join in demanding a poll. They can vote if their
appointment allows them to.

A proxy appointment must contain the member’s name and address, the Corporation’s
name, the proxy’s name, the meeting where the proxy is going, and it must be signed
by the member.

The Corporation must receive the proxy’s appointment at least 48 hours before the
meeting.

A person must not be a proxy for more than three members.

5. Directors
5.1  Number of directors
The number of directors of the Corporation is decided at the general meeting.
The minimum number is five directors, and the maximum number is fourteen directors,
on the condition that the Registrar grants an exemption pursuant to Part 6-8 of the
CATSI Act. If the Registrar declines to grant an exemption pursuant to Part 6-8 of the
CATSI Act, the maximum number is 9 directors.
5.2  Eligibility of directors
A director must be a member of the Corporation.
5.3 Majority of director requirements
A majority of directors of the Corporation must:
e usually reside in Australia; and
¢ not be employees of the Corporation.
5.4  How to become a director
Directors must give the Corporation their consent in writing to act as a director before
being appointed.
The Corporation can appoint a director by resolution passed at a general meeting.
The Corporation must send the Registrar the director’s personal details within 28 days
after they are appointed.



5.5  Directors’ terms of appointment

Directors are appointed by resolution passed in general meeting for a term of up to two

years (being the period specified in s 246-25(2) of the CATSI Act).

If the Registrar grants an exemption pursuant to Part 6-8 of the CATSI Act, directors

may be appointed for a term of up to three years.

Directors are eligible to be re-elected.

5.6 How to become an office bearer (for example, chairperson, vice-chairperson,
treasurer)

The chairperson and deputy chairperson are each elected by resolution passed in general

meeting for a term of up to two years.

If the Registrar grants an exemption pursuant to Part 6-8 of the CATSI Act, the

chairperson and deputy chairperson may each be appointed for a term of up to three

years.

5.7  Howto fill vacancies

Directors can fill casual director vacancies, including office bearers.

Directors can appoint someone as a director to make up a quorum. Their appointment

must be confirmed by resolution at the next general meeting or they stop being a

director.

5.8  How to stop being a director

A director dies.

A director resigns, in writing.

A director’s appointment expires.

A director is removed as a director by the members or the other directors.

A director is disqualified from managing a corporation.

The Corporation must send the Registrar notice within 28 days after they stop being a

director.

59  How to remove a director

By the members:

e A notice for a resolution to remove a director must be given to the Corporation
at least 21 days before the next general meeting (or AGM).

e The Corporation must give the director concerned a copy of the notice as soon
as possible.

e The director can give the Corporation a written statement and speak at the
meeting. The statement must be given to everyone entitled to notice of the
meeting (see rule 4.5).

By other directors:

e Directors can only remove a director if the director fails to attend three or more
consecutive directors’ meetings without a reasonable excuse.

e Directors must give the director a notice in writing and they must give the
director 14 days to object in writing.

e If the director objects, they cannot remove the director. The director can then
only be removed at a general meeting by resolution.



5.10 Directors’ and officers’ duties
The duties are:

e aduty of care and diligence

e aduty of good faith

e aduty to disclose a conflict of interest (material personal interest)

e a duty not to improperly use position or information

e a duty to not trade while insolvent.
The business of the Corporation is to be managed by or under the direction of directors.
The directors may exercise all the powers of the Corporation except any that the CATSI
Act or this rule book requires the Corporation to exercise in a general meeting.
5.11 Conflict of interest (material personal interest)
A director who has a material personal interest in a Corporation matter must tell the
other directors.
The director must give details of what the interest is and how it relates to the
Corporation. These details must be given at a directors’ meeting as soon as possible,
and must be recorded in the minutes of the meeting.
A director who has a material personal interest must not:

e be present at the directors’ meeting while the matter in question is being

considered

e vote on the matter
unless allowed to do so under the CATSI Act.
5.12 Payment
A director cannot be paid a salary or sitting fees for their work as directors.
Directors may be paid if they are employed by the Corporation, or if they have a contract
to provide goods or services to the Corporation (so long as the director has exercised
any duty to disclose a conflict of interest and has followed the processes detailed in 5.11
and 5.13).
The Corporation may pay the directors’ travelling and other expenses for attending
meetings or to do with other Corporation business.
5.13 Related party benefit
If the Corporation wants to give a financial benefit to a director or related party (such
as a spouse, child or parent of a director) it must comply with Part 6-6 of the CATSI
Act and, where required, follow the procedure to get the approval of the members.
5.14 Directors’ meetings
Directors must meet at least every 6 months.
The directors will usually decide at a meeting when and where the next meeting will
be.
A director can call a meeting by giving reasonable notice to all the other directors.
5.15 Quorum for directors’ meetings
A majority of the directors must be present at all times during the meeting.
5.16 Chairing directors’ meetings
The chairperson will chair directors’ meetings, or if the chairperson is not present, the
deputy chairperson.



If the chairperson and deputy chairperson are not present at a meeting, the directors can
elect a director to chair that meeting.

5.17 Using technology

Directors’ meetings can be held at more than one place using any technology, as long
as they all agree to it.

5.18 Resolutions at directors’ meetings

A resolution of directors must be passed by a majority of the votes.

The chairperson has a vote, plus a casting vote.

Resolutions can be passed without a directors’ meeting if all directors sign a statement
saying that they are in favour of it.

6. Contact person or secretary

The contact person or secretary must be at least 18 years old.

The contact person or secretary must give the Corporation his or her consent in writing
to become a contact person before being appointed.

The directors appoint a contact person or secretary.

The directors decide the contact person or secretary’s pay and terms and conditions of
employment, if any.

The contact person or secretary must pass on any correspondence received to at least
one of the directors within 14 days.

The Corporation must send the Registrar a contact person or secretary’s personal details
within 28 days after they are appointed.

7. Records
The Corporation must keep the:
e minutes of meetings (in writing or as an audio or video recording);
e rule book (constitution);
e register of members and former members;
e names and addresses of directors, officers and the contact person; and
e financial records that correctly record and explain the Corporation’s
transactions and financial position and that would enable true and fair financial
reports to be prepared and audited.
These records must be kept at the Corporation’s document access address or registered
office.

8. Finances
The Corporation must follow these procedures.
e All money of the Corporation must be deposited into a corporation bank
account.
e The Corporation must give receipts for all money it receives.
e All payments made out of the Corporation’s money must be supported by
adequate documents which explain the nature and purpose of the payment.



e All accounts must be approved for payment at a directors’ meeting or in
accordance with valid delegations.

e All cheques, withdrawal forms, electronic funds transfer (EFT) transactions,
and other banking documents must be signed by at least two directors.

9. Application of funds
Directors can use the money and property of the Corporation to carry out its business.
They cannot give the money and property to members of the Corporation.
Note: This rule does not stop the Corporation from making reasonable payment to:
e amember in their capacity as an employee
e amember under a contract for goods or services provided.

10.  Winding up

The winding up of the Corporation will follow the CATSI Act.

If the Corporation is wound up all debts, liabilities and costs of winding up must be
paid first. If there are any assets left over the members can pass a special resolution
about how to distribute those assets. However surplus assets of the Corporation cannot
be given to any member or any person to be held on trust for any member.

11. Dispute resolution
11.1  Resolving internal Corporation disputes
If a dispute arises between a member or director and:

e one or more members

e one or more directors, or

e the Corporation
about a matter other than a native title dispute described in rule 11.2, the parties must
first try to resolve it themselves.
If the dispute is not resolved within 10 business days, any party may give a dispute
notice to the other parties.
The dispute notice must be in writing and must say what the dispute is about. It must
be given to the Corporation.
If a dispute or any part of a dispute relates to the meaning of any provision of the CATSI
Act or the Corporation’s rule book, the directors or any party to the dispute may seek
an opinion from the Registrar about the correct meaning of the relevant provision. The
Registrar’s opinion will not be binding on the parties to a dispute.
The right to request assistance from the Registrar does not create a right to request
a formal mediation. However, in an appropriate case the Registrar may provide
assistance to resolve the matter.
The directors must help the parties try to resolve the dispute within 20 business days
after the Corporation receives the notice. This may include third party assistance
or mediation.
If the directors cannot resolve the dispute, it must be put to the members to resolve at a
general meeting.



11.2 Resolving native title disputes
If a dispute arises between the Corporation and a person who is or who claims
to be a common law holder, whether or not the person is a member of the Corporation,
and the dispute is about:
e whether a person is or is not a common law holder;
e the Corporation’s performance of its functions under the native title legislation;
or

e other matters directly related to a determination for which the Corporation is
appointed as the agent PBC;
the Corporation must follow the process in this rule.
First, the Corporation must encourage the parties to try to resolve the dispute between
themselves.
If the dispute is not resolved within 120 business days, any party may give a dispute
notice to the other parties and the Corporation.
The dispute notice must be in writing and must say what the dispute is about.
The directors must help the parties resolve the dispute within 120 business days after
the Corporation receives the notice.
In helping the parties resolve the dispute the directors may:
o seck third party assistance, including mediation;
o satisfy themselves that the dispute is unlikely to be resolved and take no further
action; or
e take any other action they deem appropriate.

12. Making a Native Title Decision

Before making a Native Title Decision, the Corporation must consult with and obtain
the consent of the native title holders in accordance with the PBC Regulations and the
Native Title Act. However, the Corporation does not need to consult and obtain consent
in relation to a Standing Instructions Decision covered by an approval under
subregulation 8(8) of the PBC Regulations.

13. Making a Compensation Application
Before making a Compensation Application, the Corporation must consult and obtain
consent in accordance with regulation 8B of the PBC Regulations.

14. Evidence of consultation and consent
(a) The Corporation must make and keep records for all:
(1) consultations with affected common law holders about a Native Title
Decision, including a record of the process that affected common law
holders used to give their consent;
(i1) any conditions imposed by affected common law holders when they
gave their consent to a Native Title Decision;



(ii1)variations or revocations of conditions previously imposed by affected
common law holders after they gave their consent to a Native Title
Decision;

(iv)any other directions given by affected common law holders in relation
to a Native Title Decision,;

(v) consultations with Specified Persons about a Compensation
Application, including a record of the process that Specified Persons
used to give their consent; and

(vi)any other directions given by Specified Persons in relation to a
Compensation Application.

(b) As soon as practicable after the Corporation has made a Native Title Decision
or decided to make a Compensation Application, the Corporation must prepare
a written certificate in relation to consultation and consent in accordance with
regulation 9 of the PBC Regulations.

(c) The Corporation will provide a copy of the certificate in relation to consultation
and consent to a person who asks for it in writing, if the person:

(1) i1s a common law holder in relation to the decision recorded in the
certificate; or

(1) has a substantial interest in the decision.

15. Powers

(a) Subject to the provisions of the CATSI Act, the Native Title Act, and the PBC
Regulations, the Corporation shall have power to do all such lawful things as
may seem to the directors necessary to carry out the objectives of the
Corporation.

(b) Without limiting the generality of sub-rule 15(a), for the purpose of performing
its functions the Corporation may, on behalf of the native title holders (and as
authorised by them), enter into agreements, be consulted, and exercise
procedural rights.

16. Amendment of these rules

(a) Subject to the Native Title Act and the PBC Regulations, amending these rules
involves three steps. The amendment does not occur until the third step is
complete.

(b) The Corporation can only amend these rules by resolution passed by 75% or
more of the members of the Corporation present and eligible to vote at a general
meeting held in accordance with these rules. The resolution containing the
proposed amendment must be included in the notice of the general meeting.

(c) A copy of the proposed amendment must be lodged with the Registrar within
28 days after the resolution in sub-rule 16(b). The proposed amendment is not
effective until after the Registrar has approved it in accordance with the CATSI
Act.



17. Dictionary

Aboriginal means a person who is a member of the Aboriginal race of Australia.
AGM means annual general meeting.

CATSI Act means the Corporations (Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander) Act 2006
(Cth).

CLA means community living area.

Corporation means the Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC.
Common law holder has the same meaning as in the Native Title Act.

Community living area means an area granted or created as an Aboriginal community
living area by or under a law of the Northern Territory.

Note: Land granted to an association under subsection 46(1A) of the Lands Acquisition Act of the
Northern Territory (including that land as held by a successor to an association) is a community
living area (see s 4(c) and 31(1)(b)(ii) of the Northern Territory National Emergency Response Act
2007 (Cth)).

Compensation Application means an application for compensation for effects on native
title rights and interests, including an application made under the Native Title Act for a
determination of compensation.

Native Title Act means the Native Title Act 1993 (Cth).

Native Title Decision has the same meaning as in regulation 3 of the PBC Regulations.
Native title holder has the same meaning as in the Native Title Act.

Native title rights and/or interests has the same meaning as in the Native Title Act.

NLC means the Northern Land Council and its successors.

(Note: The NLC is a body which is established under s 21 of the Aboriginal Land Rights (Northern
Territory) Act 1976, and which has been determined under s 202 of the Native Title Act as a
representative Aboriginal/Torres Strait Islander body for the northern half of the Northern
Territory.

NLC Executive Council is a committee comprised of NLC members appointed from
time to time pursuant to s 29A of the Aboriginal Land Rights (Northern Territory) Act
1976 (Cth).

PBC means prescribed body corporate.

PBC Regulations means the Native Title (Prescribed Bodies Corporate) Regulations
1999 (Cth).

Registrar means the Registrar of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Corporations
appointed under the CATSI Act.

RNTBC means Registered Native Title Body Corporate.
Specified Persons has the same meaning as in the PBC Regulations.
Standing Instructions Decision has the same meaning as in the PBC Regulations.



Schedule 1—Application for membership form

Application for membership

Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC

L

of

apply for Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal
membership of Corporation RNTBC

Signature of
applicant

Date

(first name of applicant)

(last name of applicant)

(address of applicant)

(name of Aboriginal and
Torres Strait Islander
corporation)

Office use only

Application tabled at directors’ meeting held | Date:
Directors confirmed applicant is eligible for Yes / No
membership

Entered on register of members Date:

Chairperson’s signature



Schedule 2—Appointment of proxy form

Appointment of proxy

IR (full name of member)

of (address of member)

am a member of Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal (name of Aboriginal and
Corporation RNTBC Torres Strait Islander

corporation)
I appoint (full name of proxy)
of (address of proxy)

as my proxy to vote for me on my behalf at the general meeting of the Corporation (annual
general meeting or other general meeting, as the case may be) to be held on

(date of meeting)
and at any adjournment of that meeting.
Signature of member

Date

NOTE: A proxy vote may be given to a member of the Corporation or another person.



Schedule 3—Consent to become a director form

Consent to become a director

IR (full name of person)

of (address of person)

give consent to Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal (name of Aboriginal and

become a director of  Corporation RNTBC Torres Strait Islander
corporation)

as nominated at the general meeting of the Corporation (annual general meeting or other
general meeting, as the case may be) held on:

(date of meeting)

I also acknowledge that a person is automatically disqualified from managing corporations if
they:

e have been convicted of an offence under the Corporations (Aboriginal and Torres
Strait Islander) Act 2006 (CATSI Act) that is punishable by imprisonment for more
than 12 months

e have been convicted of an offence involving dishonesty that is punishable by
imprisonment for at least three months

e have been convicted of an offence against the law of a foreign country that is
punishable by imprisonment for more than 12 months

e are an undischarged bankrupt

e have signed a personal insolvency agreement and have not kept to the agreement

e have been disqualified under the Corporations Act 2001 from managing corporations.

The period of automatic disqualification is set out in sections 279-5 and 279-10 of the CATSI
Act.

Signature of person

Date

NOTE: This form should be completed and given to the Corporation before the
person is appointed as a director—section 246-10(1) of the CATSI Act.



Frome

Subject:

FW: 221118 Letter from NLC CEO to ORIC - Top End (Dedauit PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC
[NLC-NLC.FID23595] [SEC=OFFICIAL]

Date: Monday, 9 January 2023 6:40:50 M
Attachments: oeoe001 cog

)

As promised, but apologies for not sending this earlier (it slipped my mind because the letter
came to me a bit belatedly in the piece!), just FYl attached.

Cheers

From: Huey, Andrew <Andrew.Huey@oric.gov.au>

Sent: Monday, 21 November 2022 12:20 PM

To: EEEINEI o i ov.au>

Subject: FW: 221118 Letter from NLC CEO to ORIC - Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal
Corporation RNTBC [NLC-NLC.FID23595] [SEC=0OFFICIAL]

From: Huey, Andrew (Protected) <andrew huey@niaa gov.au>
Sent: Friday, 18 November 2022 4:21 PM
To: Huey, Andrew <Andrew Huey@oric gov.au>; Stroud, Tricia <Iricia Stroud@oric gov au>

Subject: Fwd: 221118 Letter from NLC CEO to ORIC - Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal
Corporation RNTBC [NLC-NLC.FID23595]

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Harriet Roberts <RoberH@nlic org au>
Date: 18 November 2022 at 11:11:41 am AEDT
To: "HUDy, Andrew" <Andrew Huev@niaa gov.aus




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

ST I

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






From: Huey, Andrew (Protected) <andrew hueyi

Sent: Thursday, 5 }.muarv 2023 5:13 PM

»» Stroud, Tricia <

_ >
@oric.go ;

> Huey, Andrew

{r } YOric o4 e
<Andrew Huev(@or oV alu>

Subject: FW: Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC - Amended rule book
[NLC-NLC.FID23595] [SEC=0OFFICIAL]

OFFICIAL
od afternoon

From: Harriet Roberts <RoberH@nic orp au>

Sent: Friday, 23 December 2022 4:13 PM

To: Huey, Andrew <Andr:

¢ RN -__M_,_ _ -
Subject: Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC - Amended rule book [NLC
NLC.FID23595)

Dear Mr Huey

Thank you for your time on 15 December 2022 to discuss amendments to the rule book of the
Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC (the Top End PBC).

As discussed at that meeting, please find attached the Top End PBC's amended rule book for
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

A5 Mixchell St, Darwsn NT 0800
GPO Box 1222, Darwin NT 0801

-

Email: roherhfinlc org au | Website: wwos nlic arg ay

Disclaimer

The information contalned in this communication from the sender Is confidential, It is intended solely for
use by the recipient and others authorized to recelve it. If you are not the reciplent, you are heraby
notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution or taking action in relation of the contents of this
informastion is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful.

This emall has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived by
Mimecast Ltd, an innovator in Software as & Service (SaaS) for business, Providing o safer and more
useful place for your human generated data. Specializing in; Security, archiving and compliance. To find
out more Click Here.



. s - o
T Style Definition: T0C 1

"+ Style Definition: Comment Text

THE -~
RULE
BOOK

This rule book complies with the Corporanions (Aboniginal and Torres Strait Islander)
Act 2006, (Cth)



.4 Formatted: Nommal, Left, Space After: 0 ot

_- {F«maud Space Before: O pt

Top End (Default
PBC/CLA) Aboriginal
Corporation RNTBC

ICN: 7848

ovm e ‘LM: Space Before: O pt

This rule book complics with the Corporanions (Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander)
Act 2006 (Cth).



The rule book contents

1 Name 3
g € =4
2 Obiectives 3
= OPJeCHVES =4
3 embers 3
I+ TVHCHDEES >
4 cetinos 5
as TvreCHRgS ~

-~ Iecprds 15
G inenecs 15
Q Annlhecation-of-funds 16
9. Seaplientios e ads

10 Windinocun 16
1. Winding-u

1. Name 5
2. Objectives 5
3. Members 5
4. Meetings 9
5. Directors 11
6. Contact person or secretary. 15
1. Records 15
8. Finances 15
9. Application of funds 16
10.  Winding up...... 16

11.  Dispute resolution 16




w = = 1 Formatted: Space Before: O pt, Aler: pacng:
Moliphe 1150 - oot




[ B Name

The name of the eorporitent orporation : Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal
Corporation RNTBC,

2. Objectives
2.1 Registered Native Title Body Corporate
The objectives of the corporsteonC orporatioq in relation to native title are:

(a) to be aRegrstered Native Tatle Body Corporate a0 RNTBC) regarding land and* -

................................

(b) to act as agent for the native title holders in respect of matters relating to pative
title;

(c) to manage the native title nghts and interests of the native title holders as

(d) to perform any other functions in relation to the native title rights and interests
as directed by the native title holders: and

(¢) to hold any rcal or personal property (including money). ixluding real or
personal property received by way of compensation or other consideration
payable in relation to the native title nghts and mterests. on trust, and to mvest
or otherwise apply any moncy as directed by the native tithe holderss,

= 4 Formatted: bullet 1, Line spaong: Multiple

Without himsting the generality of clauses (a) to (¢) of this rule. for the purposes of*- = = 7 Fermatted: Soace efory: © o, After: 0 0, Linw soacng:

performing its functions the eesperairenC orporation may, on behalf of the native title
holders (and as authorised by them). enter mto agroements. be consulted. and exercise
procedural nghts.

2.2 Community Living Areas e

The objectives of the sesperstssn( orporation in relation to community living areas are:

(a) to be the owner of land (including any estate or interest i land, whether legal -

or equitable) that is a community living area;

(b) to perform its functions as the owner of land that is a communsty living area
with due conssderation to the interests of the native title holders, and the
residents, of that land: and

(<) to hold any real or personal property (including money), mcluding real or
personal property received by way of compensation or other consideration
payable i relation to the community living arca, on trust. and fo mvest or
otherwise apply any moncy with due conssderation 1o the interests of the native
title holders, and the residents. of that land.

3. Members --

3.1 Membership Model
a) Eligabality £ 1 tion 18 confi o W
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

(i) asat31 December 2022, since the Corporation’s registration on 7 March
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

(ii) all of these determinations relate to land and waters that are within the
area for which the NLC is the representative Aboriginal/Torres Strait
Islander body (RATSIB) under Part 11 of the Native Title Act;

(iii)there are native title determinations located in every one of the seven
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

(¢) In this context, the Corporation’s membership model operates in the following
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

(ii) The NLC’s Executive Council is a committee appointed under section
29A of the Land Rights Act, with delegated authority to perform
particular statutory functions where it is not administratively necessary
or convenient for the Full Council to perform those functions itself;

(iii)The members of the Executive Council are elected by the Full Council,
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
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(a) a member of the NLC Executive Council; snd
(b) at least 18 years of age- and
: horivin)

333  How to become a member
A person applies in wnitings;

A persoa is eligible under male 3.3-2;
e e e o
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The person’s name, ld&vessmddmtbeybewnenmembunpmoctbenpuuof
members.
The dircctors mmy—relete-giisst accept a membership application—tH—soriher—tmmist
woudy i the applicant has applicd in writing efshe-desrion-and the reaconcforis
applicant mests the shigbility requircments i nils 3.2,
34 Members’ rights
A member can:

2] attend, speak and vote at general meetings;

> .-

2 1t oow coatradacted by e smendment belew Rt rogases the
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<0 be made a director:
«(c) put forward resolutions at general meetings;
«(d) ask the directors to call a general meeting: and
«c) look at the books and records of the wespomienCorporation (if the
directors have authorised them to do this, or if the members have passed a
resolution which lets them do thas).
345 Members’ responsibilities
A member must;
1 follow the eorpersirenComporation rules:
ab) advise the eesposstenCorporation if he or she changes his or her

P
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address;
«{c] __treat other members with respect and

the Corporation has respoasibility: and
{i1) for the benefit of. and in the best interests of. those common law holders.
358 Liability of members

e

Members do not have to pay eespesetenComoration debts if the

eerperston{orparation is wound up.

367 How to stop being a member

A person stops being a member if: !
~x) he or she resigns in writing; s
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c) his or her membership 1s cancelled.

The person’s name, address and date they stopped being a member i put on the regasters = -

of former members.
2847 Cancelling membership
5 . " i )
E"; Fhe-disssior~(oe Sorpieation) ﬁm—m - LAy » ""I"""'"
"'T"' the ""I""l" "'I‘,’ ; ‘I. 'F"'"'h - Il‘ 'l"'."".'" irnctaligble-formembarship
Q) FHeevorpernirosrmeyby- be cancelled by special mhlm-mmm*
a genenal mectingresnce-the-membervhipof-s-member if
(l)WWMmtm%lomlW
member at their address eatered oa the register of members for a
continuous period of twol years befereprior to the meeting, and the
Compornation has made two or more reasonable attempts to contact the
member during shetswa-dlic 2-year peniod but has been unable to; or
(11} sthe general mecting is satisfied that the member is not an Aboriginal

\
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pervon; or

fai(us)  the general meeting is satisfied that the member has behaved tne- = - -
a manoer that significantly interfered with the operation of the
mudww

s me

m be ell«l duecwn

() Beforg 3 membership is cancelled under rule 3. 76801, the directors must.
{1 ke reasonable steps to make sure the member js not, or hhias stopped
being, cligible under rule 3.2: and
stsmmmmh« nohice I Whling. u&mm,

1 relevant member objects ~ the directors mwust not cancel the

e ip and oal C tion may cancel the rehip by

molulim at a general meeting.

)
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member who cannot be contacted, may do so by forwarding a copy of the
resolution eHo the last known address of the member).

3.89  The register of members and former members

The register must contain;
«2) members’ and former members” names and addresses;
oL the date when the names were put on the register: and
afc) ____for former members, the date when they stopped being a member.

-~

The register must be kept at the sesparisenel orporation’s document access addresss =~

or regastered office. It must be available at the snmslsenersbmestnstAGMS,

4.  Meetings
41  AGM timing
AGMsmmlbchddbcforﬂhcmdofNoswbamhy«:m

pmod wlhnn mcmc C_omtanm nmzmm! 10 bold it or

SEAGt provades otherwise.
4.2 AGM business R
AGMs are for:
o) confinming the minmutes of the previous general mecting,
ac) ____ presenting reports: general, financial, directors’; -
«{d) ____clecting directors;
«5) __ choosing an auditor (if required) and agrecing on the fee and
e . : I
«{flasking questions about how the esspasstsen orporation is managed.
4.3 General meetings
A-diwesior-Thic dircctors can call a general meeting or AGM by passing a resolution
at a directors’ meeting or by a circulating resolution.

Q

\
.
.

=>4

ey uired munber of members can adkeequest the disectors to call as~ . _
general meeting.
Fhedivectorcimust-oallthe-Number of members Number of members
in Corporation required to ask for a general meeting
within
410 10 members = Lmsmbex
1Lt 29 members =3 wembers
Ihs members” request st
e __be in wnting:

51

* _npominate a member to be the contact member on behalf of the members making
the request: and

Rwlo 8«&” “I;"I a'l“‘a“““mW , A e .
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o be given 1o the C 1)

Within 21 days_of seesiving the request, the directors st cither call the mcsting™ = = 1 Formatted: Nomal, Line spacing: Mutiole 1.15 §

oz apply to the Registrar 1o deny the request
44 General meeting busimess

General mectings are for:

«{3) ____confirming the minutes of the previous general meeting: and

«b) ___ completing the business specified in the notice of the meeting.
4.5 Notice for general meetings *~,
At least 21 days’ notice must be given.

Notice must be given to members, directors, officers, the contact person and the auditor
(if the esrparasonC orporation has one).
The notice must set out:

e the place, date and time for the meeting,

e the busiess of the mecting;
if a special resolution is being proposed, and what it is; and

* if a member can appoint a proxy.

Notices can be given to members pessonally, sent by post to their address, sent by fax* -~
or sent by email.
A notice of meeting:

* sent by post is taken to be given three days after it is posted, og
sent by fax. or other electronic means, i taken to be given on the business day
after it 1s sent.

A general mecting. or a notice of a general mecting which 15 requared to be givens - -
according to these rules, or any proceeding at a general mecting. 1 not invalidated
merely because of the accidental omission to give notice of the general mecting. or
becanse a person does not recerve the notice of the general mecting.

o=

-

-

-

4.6  Members’ resolutions
ArmemberIhe requured pumber of members can propose a resolution by giving notice
of- it~ to- the-eorpormtron Corpomticn.

- -

Number of members Number of members required to

in Corporation propose a resolution

210 10 members = L member

Llto 29 members = 3 members

The notice must set out the resolution in writing and must be sipned by the memberss - -
proposing it.

The eespamsianCorporation must give notice of the resolution to all people entitled to
it (see rule 4.5).

The eerporstrenComporation misst conssder the resolution at the next general meeting
which 15 bemng beld more than 28 days after the notice has been sent out.

4.7 Quorum at general meetings

The number of members to make a quorum s five members.

Rwlo 8«&” “I;"I a'l“‘a“““mW , A e .
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The quorum must be present duning the whole meeting. If there 13 no quorum afier one
hour, the mecting is adjourned until the next week at the same time. If there s still no
quorum. the meeting 13 cancelled.

4.8  Chairing general meetings

The chawrperson will chair general mectings. If the champerson is not available, the
deputy chairperson will chair the meeting. If neither chairperson nor deputy chairperson
are available, the members must elect someons to chair the meeting.

4.9  Using technology

General meetings can be held at more than one place using any technology that gives
members awav-aitalaneparas 1 whole a reasonable opportunity to participate.

410 Voting

Each member has one vote,

The chairperson has one vote (if he or she is a member) plus a casting vote.

A challenge to a nght to vote at a general meeting may only be made at the meeting,
and must be determined by the chairperson, whose decision is final,

A resolution can be decided by majonity on a show of hands, unless a poll is demanded.
(A poll 1s a formal vote. not by show of hands—for example, by writing on a voting
paper or placing marbles in labelled jars.)

The chairperson tells the mecting whether they have received any proxy votes and what
they are.

The chamrperson declares the results of the vote, on a show of hands, or when a poll 1s
demanded.

411 Demanding a poll

Any member entitled to vote on the resolution or the chairperson can demand a poll.
A poll can be held before or after a show of hands vote.

A poll on the clection of a chairperson or on the questican of an adjoumment must be
taken immediately. A poll demanded on other matters must be taken when and in the
manner the chairperson dsrects,

412 Proxies

Members can appoent another member as proxy to attend mectings and vote for them.
Proxies can also speak at meetings and join in demanding a poll. They can vote if their
appointment allows them to,

A proxy appointment must cootain the member's name and address, thes - - { Formatted: Line spacing: Multipls 1.15 b

eospesaisensCorporation’s pame, the proxy’s name, the meeting where the proxy is
going, and it must be signed by the member.

The eorpomsenCorporation must receive the proxy's appomtment at least 48 bourss = -

before the meeting.
A person must not be a proxy for more than three members.

5. Directors

5.1 Number of directors

The number of dircctors of the eespomirenCorpomtion 15 decided at the general
mecting.
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5.2 Eligibility of directors

A director must bes
>—rtert— e yeerroid
- .mhofmm«omhm .‘“{MM.UD“W Muichs 1,156 J
e i = = 1 Formatted: Lvw spacing: Mutiph 1.35 K, Numbeeed +
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5.3 Majority of director requirements or. | M tal« Alaad s 05 0 s Ibasee 1270 |
A majonty of directors of the eerperstitenC orporation must: "4 Fermatted: Soace lwkory: © (2, Aer- 0 pt, Line spacng:
o usually resade 1n Australia; and ~o. Munus:. —
e not be employees of the eorpossttonC orporation. e e
5.4 How to become a director =« 4 Formatted: Soace efory: O pf, Afer: 0 o1, Line spacng:
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N S e A S e e o e e e e e
Directors must give the eespassisenCorporation their consent in writing to act as a* =~ | Fermatted: Space Before: O pt, Afer: 0 pt, Line spacng:
director before being appointed. Makiple 1.15 4

The Corporation can apposn! a director by resolution passed at a general meeting.
The eospesstonCorporation must send the Registrar the director’s personal details=- = = 7 Formatted: Space Before: © pt, After: 0 pt, Line spacing:
m&m’smuﬁuﬂuymmmed“‘ e e REND LI
5.5 Directors’ terms of appointment
Directors arc appointed by resolution passed in general meeting for a term of up to two
years (being the penod specified in s 246:25(2) of the CATSI Act).
If the Registrar grants an excmption pursuant to «-++8-5Pa1 6-8 of the CATSI Act,
darectors may be appointed for a term of up to three years.
Diarectors are cligible to be re-elected.
5.6 How to become an office bearer (for example, chairperson, vice-chairperson,
treasurer)
The charperson wand deputy chairperson are cach elected by resolution passed
general meeting for a term of up to two years.
» h ol c \
od i ioelostedd - " I e :
W
If the Registrar grants an exemption pursuant to s+40.80art 6.8 of the CATSI Act, thes = - { Formatted: Space Before: © pt, Afer: 0 pt, Une spacng: ]
chairperson and deputy chairperson may_cach be appointed for a term of up to three Lo
years.
5.7 How 1o fill vacancies
Darectors can fill casual director vacancies, including office bearers.
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Darectors can appomt somcone as a director to make up a quorum. Their appoimntment
munst be confirmed by resolution at the next general mecting or they stop being a
darector.

5.8  How to stop being a director

A derector dies.

A derector resigns, in wniting.

A derector’s appointment expires.

A derector is removed as a director by the members or the other directors.

A derector is disqualified from managing a corporation.

The posatenCorporation must send the Repistrar she—disestorc—porconsl
desnsdanotice within 28 days after they stop being a director, Fhe-cerporeionean-iee
ho-Roivtrarte-Monils o froovndosailed

5.9  How to remove a director

By the members:

e A notice for a resolution to remove a director must be given to thes -~

eompasmtenorpomtion at least 21 days before the next general meeting (or
AGM).

Formatted: Body, Une spacing: Multiple 1.15 §, Bulleted +
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o The eerpemisenl orporation must give the director concemned a copy of thes = = { Formatted: Line spacng: Multple 115 & ]
Botice as soon as possible.
* The director can give the eespersisend crporalion a wntten statement and speak
at the mecting. The statement must be given to everyone entitled to notice of the
meeting (sec rule 4.5).
By other directors: e m:uam:ou&c 0 g%, Litw spacng:
e Directors can remove a director if the director fals 10 attend three or more™- -
cwivtd:gm'mtinpwiwamable excuse. Formatied: Une samg: MAPR LISL
e Directors must give the director a notice in writing and they must give the
director 14 days to object in writing.
o If the director objects, they cannot remove the director, The director can then
only-then be removed at a general meeting by resolution.
5.10  Directors’ and officers’ duties r--{mrmm: O p2, After: 0 pt, Line spacing:
The duties are:
o aduty of care and diligence - = = 4 Formatted: Line spacing: Multiphs 1.15 b )
e aduty of good fasth
* aduty to disclose a conflict of interest (matenial personal interest)
* aduty not to mproperly use position or information
e aduty to not trade while msolvent.

The business of the esspessivonC orporation 1 to be managed by or under the direction
of directors. The directors may exercise all the powers of the eorperiten( orporation
except any that the CATSI Act or this rule book requires the esspemsirent orporation to
exercise in a general mecting.

S5.11  Cenfllict of interest (material personal interest) e

A director who has a material personal interest in a eerpessttent orporation matter mist
tell the other directors.
RuloSe ilhl I|I“'I '|"'l ‘“".""'I ”I DECLAIAbenginel-Corporstion llm““'
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The director must give detmls of what the mterest s and how nt relates 10 the
conpessirenCorporation. These details must be given at a directors’ mecting as soon as
possible. and must be recorded in the minutes of the mecting.

A darector who has a matenal personal interest must not:

e be present at the directors’ meeting while the matter in question is being®" = = { Formatted: Lnw soacng: Mltoh 135§

considered
* vote on the matter
unless allowed to do so under the CATSI Act.

512 Paymemt oda

A darector cannot be pasd a salary or sitting fees for their work as directors.
Directors may be paid if they are employed by the eesperstsonCorporation. or if they
have a contract to provade goods or services 10 the eespesnissnCorporatiog (so long as
the director has exercised any duty to disclose a conflict of mterest and has followed
the processes detailed in .11 and 5.13).

The eospersison crporation may pay the directors’ travelling and other expenses for
attending mectings or to do with other estpeenient orporation busimess.

5.13  Related party benefit

If aworpomisenthie Comporation wants to give a financial benefit 1o a director or related
party (such as a spouse. child or parent of a director) it must comply with pestPart 6-6
of the CATSI Act and, where required, follow the procedure to get the approval of the
members.

514 Directors’ meerings

Directors must meet at least every 426 months.

The directors will usually decide at a meeting when and where the next meeting will
be.

A derector can call a meeting by giving reasonable notice to all the other directors.
515 Quorum for directors’ meetings

A majority of the directors must be present at all times duning the meeting.

§5.16  Chairing directors’ meetings

& .| sl LA N ANl

the deputy chauperson,

If the chairperson and deputy chasrperson are not present af a mecting, the directors can
clect a director to chair Shes-smeetings.

B T e LR I (e ST S ==

5,17 Using rechnology

Directors” meetings can be beld at more than one place using any technology, as long
as they all agree to it

5.18  Resolutions at directors” meetings

A resolution of directors must be passed by a majonty of the votes.

The chaurperson has & vote, plus a casting vote.

Resolutions can be passed without a directors’ meeting if all directors sign a statement
saying that they arc i favour of it

Rl a“"l \ “I;"I &l"m"‘. "'I DCCA) Abengnal-Comporstion RNFI G :
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6.  Contact person or secretary ot
The contact person or secretary must be at least 18 years old.

act st give tion his or L writing
) 1€ A contact 1 bef g APPOL
The directors appoint a CONACE PErson Of secretary. Sy

The directors decide the contact person of secretary’s pay and terms and conditions of
employmesnt, if any.
The contact person oF secretary must pass on any cowespondence received to at Jeast
one of the directors within 14 days.
3}" re hag v ' ' , =

I bok ""'l -givethe .""l""""" hiv-orhorsomentin-writing
Fhecomperetron e Corporation must send the Registrar a contact person or secretary’s* = =
personal details within 28 days after they are appointed +SeeNonfrentomofrrhampe
to corpovaiion officers " detasis form)

7. Records

The earpasmsienC orporation must keep the:

minutes of meetings (in writing or as an awdio or video recordmgs); stne
rule book (constitutions), ~.
register of members and former members;

names and addresses of directors, officers and the contact person,_and

fmancial  records that  correctly  record  and  explain the
worporsien_omporation’s transactions and financial position and that would
cnable true and fair financial reports 1o be prepared and audited.

These records must be kept at the esrporeiten—Corporation’s document access address
or regastered office.

8. Finances —
The eorpormuenComporation must follow these procedures.,
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o All money of the eospestrenCorporation must be deposited mto a corporation= = - { Fermatted: Line spacng: Mutiple 1.15 §

bank account.
The eompemtren{ orporation musst give receipts for all moncy it receives.
All payments made out of the sespamsensComporation’s money must be
supported by adequate documents which explain the nature and purpose of the
payment,

e All accounts must be approved for payment at a directors’ meeting or m
accordance with valid delegations.

o Al cheques. withdrawal forms. clectromc funds transfer (EFT) transactions,
and other banking documents must be sagned by at beast two directors.
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9.  Application of funds

Directors can use the moncy and property of the estpomsenC orporation to carmy out its
business. They cammot give the moncy and property to members of the

i A
Note: This rule does not stop the eerportenCorporation from making reasonable
payment to;

* amember in their capacity as an employee o = = | Formatted: Line soucing: Multich 1,35 b

e a member under a contract for goods or services provided.

- = = 3 Formatted: Space Before: O pt, ARer: 0 pt, Line spacing:

10. Winding up Pl 1339

The winding up of the eerperstienCorporation will follow the CATSI Act.

If the corpemtronCorporation is wound up all debes, habilities and costs of winding up
must be paid first. If there arc any assets left over the members can pass a special
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(b) Without limating the gencrality of sub-rule 15(a). for the purpose of performing
its functions the Corporation may. on behalf of the native titke holders (and as
authorised by them). enter into agreements. be consulted, and exercise
procedisral rights.
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(b) The eerporationCorporation can only amend these rules by resolution passed by
75% or more of the members of the eerperationCorporation present and eligible
to vote at a general meeting held in accordance with these rules. The resolution

containing the proposed amendment must be included in the notice of the
general meeting.

(c) A copy of the proposed amendment must be lodged with the Registrar within
28 days after the resolution in sub-rule +516(b). The proposed amendment is
not effective until after the Registrar has approved it in accordance with the
CATSI Act.
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Aboriginal means a person who s a member of the Aboriginal race of Australia.
AGM means anoual genesal meeting.
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2006 (Cth).
CLA means community living area,
Corporation means the Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Abonginal Corporation RNTBC.
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Native Tutle Act,

Native tidle rights and/or interests has the same meanzng as i the Natrve Title Act.
NLC means the Nosthern Land Council and its successors.

(Note: The NLC 15 a body which s established under s 21 of @e Abovigiaa! Land Righes (Novthern
Terrivory) Act 1976, and which don been determmed snder & 202 of the Native Title Act v 3
represcstative Abonigsal Torres Steait Ilsader body for the sorthers half of e Norbers

Temsery
NLC Executive Council is a committee comprised of NLC members appointed from
time to tune pursuant to s 29A of the Aboriginal Land Rights (Novthern Territory) Act
1976 (Cth).

PBC means prescribed body corporate.

Registrar means the Registrar of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Corporationss- - = | Formatted: Space Before: 0 pt

appointed under the CATSI Act.
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Schedule 2—Appointment of proxy form

Appointment of proxy
IR (full name of member)
of (address of member)

Top End (Default PBC/CLA) (name of Aboriginal and
Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC Torres Strait Islander

am a member of

corporation)
I appoint (full name of proxy)
of (address of proxy)

as my proxy to vote for me on my behalf at the general meeting of the eerperatienCorporation
(annual general meeting or other general meeting, as the case may be) to be held on

(date of meeting)
and at any adjournment of that meeting.
Signature of member

Date

NOTE: A proxy vote may be given to a member of the eerperatienCorporation or
another person.




Schedule 3—Consent to become a director form
Consent to become a director
1, (full name of person)

of (address of person)

Top End (Default PBC/CLA) (name of Aboriginal and

Torres Strait Islander
corporation)

give consent to
become a director of  Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC

as nominated at the general meeting of the eerperationCorporation (annual general meeting or
other general meeting, as the case may be) held on:

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

¢ have been convicted of an offence involving dishonesty that is punishable by
imprisonment for at least three months

« have been convicted of an offence against the law of a foreign country that is
punishable by imprisonment for more than 12 months

o are an undischarged bankrupt

« have signed a personal insolvency agreement and have not kept to the agreement

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

NOTE: This form should be completed and given to the eerperationCorporation
before the person is appointed as a director—section 246-10(1) of the CATSI Act.




Frome

To:

Ce:

Subject: PW: Review: Top Und (Default PUC/CLA) Abongnad Corporation RNTEC - Amended ruide book
Date: Thursday, 19 January 2023 10:47:10 AM

Attachments: o001 pog

0 \’!1 nl : |‘1‘.

Hi team

Ahead of the meeting with NIAA this arvo please find attac hvd-.adwc e on the rule book
changes proposed by NLC for Top End Default,

| have not looked at this in detail but wanted to share as soon as | could so everyone has a

chance to review ahead of the meeting

Cheers



















From: Huey, Andrew (Protected) <andrew.huey@niaa.gov.au>
Sent: Thursday, 5 January 2023 5:13 PM

To _@orlc gov.au>; Stroud, Tricia <Tricia.Stroud@oric.gov.au>

S [y
<Andrew.Huey@oric.gov.au>
Subject: FW: Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC - Amended rule book

[NLC-NLC.FID23595] [SEC=OFFICIAL]

OFFICIAL

Good afternoon

My apologiesfo the detay in sencing on. RN

Regards, Andrew

From: Harriet Roberts <RoberH@nlc.org.au>
Sent: Friday, 23 December 2022 4:13 PM



To: Huey, Andrew <Andrew.Huey@niaa.gov.au>

Subject: Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC - Amended rule book [NLC-
NLC.FID23595]

Dear Mr Huey

Thank you for your time on 15 December 2022 to discuss amendments to the rule book of the
Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC (the Top End PBC).

As discussed at that meeting, please find attached the Top End PBC’'s amended rule book for
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

------ IMPORTANT - This email and any attachments have been issued by the Australian
Government Department of Agriculture, Water and the Environment. The material
transmitted is for the use of the intended recipient only and may contain confidential,
legally privileged, copyright or personal information. You should not copy, use or disclose
it without authorisation from the Department. It is your responsibility to check any
attachments for viruses and defects before opening or forwarding them. If you are not an
intended recipient, please contact the sender of this email at once by return email and then
delete both messages. Unintended recipients must not copy, use, disclose, rely on or
publish this email or attachments. The Department of Agriculture, Water and the
Environment is not liable for any loss or damage resulting from unauthorised use or
dissemination of, or any reliance on, this email or attachments. If you have received this e-
mail as part of a valid mailing list and no longer want to receive a message such as this
one, advise the sender by return e-mail accordingly. This notice should not be deleted or
altered ------
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Frome
To:
Subject:

Date: Wednesday, 25 January 2023 1:30:49 PM
Attachments: meocOil oo
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Yes thank{JjjJj. much apprediated.
Yes will get onto it

Cheers

Sent: Wednesday, 25 January 2023 12:29 PM

sovic: EE

decision

Hi

Would you be able to consider and prepare an advice for Andrew on the above question? Let me
know if you want to talk though any considerations.

Thanks so muc h-,



















From: Harriet Roberts <RoberH@nlc.org.au>

Sent: Friday, 23 December 2022 4:13 PM

- ERR S v .- RS R .

Subject: Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC - Amended rule book [NLC-
NLC.FID23595]

oeor SN

Thank you for your time on 15 December 2022 to discuss amendments to the rule book of the
Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC (the Top End PBC).

As discussed at that meeting, please find attached the Top End PBC’s amended rule book for
ORIC’s consideration.

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

The name of the eormperitent orporation 1 Top End (Default PEC/CLA) Aboriginal
Corporation RNTBC,

2. Objectives
2.1 Registered Native Tile Body Corporate
The objectives of the corporstsonC opogation in relation to native title are:
(a) to be aRegrstered Native Tatle Body Corporate{an RNTBC) regarding land and* - -
(b) to act as agent for the ative title holders in respect of matters relating to pative -
title;
(c) to manage the native title nghts and interests of the native title holders as

(d) to perform any other functions in relation to the native tithe nghts and interests
as directed by the native title holders:_and
(¢) to hold any rcal or personal property (including money). ixluding real or
personal property received by way of compensation or other consideration
payable i relation to the native tile rghts and mterests, on trust, and to invest
or otherwise apply any moncy as directed by the native tithe holders:,
Without himsting the gencrality of clauses {(a) to (¢) of this rule. for the purposes of* - -
performing its functions the sespersient orporition may. on behalf of the native title
holders (and as authorised by them). enter mto agroements. be consulted. and exercise

procedural nghts.

2.2 Community Living Areas e
The objectives of the sespessiean( ciporation in relation to community living areas are:

(a) to be the owner of land (including any estate or interest i land, whether legals - -
or equstable) that is a community living area;

(b) to perform its functions as the owner of land that is a communsty living area
with due conssderation to the interests of the native title holders, and the
residents, of that land: and

(<) to hold any rcal or personal property (including money), mcluding real or
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

3. Members o

31 Membership Model
(2) Eligababity for membership of the Corporation 1s sonfined to those persons who
are members of the Executive Council of the Nosthern Land Council (NLC). as

slected from time to tuwe, Under this membership model, all common law
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
Islander body (RATSIB) under Part 11 of the Native Title Act:

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




all the conuncn law holders of native title on whose behalf of the

Co 100 is appotnt
R R o TSN Y * . - Formatted: Font: ok, Itabe )
A member of the werpetmiend orportion must be: " { Formatted: Body, Line spacing: Mukihs 1.15 § i
(a) a member of the NLC Executive Council; sned ---‘M!«-Ml &"mmu? "”;nwan +
- e *
(b) at least 18 years of age snd Nhorvomnt: Loft + Abosed at: 0.69 Gn + Indwetot: 127 om
. e e e e s . - =+ Commmnted [ORIC1}: No ™
............. --l k —ﬂlulll-lb
335  How to become a member =~ = 4 Formatted: Space Before: O pt, After: 0 pt, Line spacng: ]
A person applies in wnting.; n-hdn.ul
A person is eligible under rale 3.4-2;
The directors agree., and
The person’s name, address and date they became a member is put o the register of
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«(c) ___ lus or ber membership is cancelled.
The person’s name, address and date they stopped being a member 18 put on the regasters -
of former members.
2847 Canceilling membership o4
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f4i(iis)  the general meeting is satisfied that the member has behaved tne- - - -
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. the directors 1 o c ip f <. 1
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b._the member has 14 days to object to the cancellation of
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resolution at a general meeting.
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member who caunnot be contacied, may do so by forwarding a copy of the
resolution «Ho the last known address of the member).

389 The register of members and former members
The register must contain;
«{a) ___ members’ and former members’ names and addresses:

P
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o) the date when the names were put on the registers and

<) for former members, the date when they stopped being a member,
The register must be kept at the sesperiensel orporation’s document access address= -
or regastered office. It must be available at the snsslsenernbmestnstAGMS,

4.  Meetings
41  AGM timing
AGMs must be held before the end of November each year unless:
penod withm which the Corporation 1s required 1o hold jt; or
e CATSI Act providss o 18,
4.2 AGM business
AGMs are for:
o) confinming the minutes of the previous general mecting,
«c) ____ presenting reports: general, financial, directors’;
(4} clecting directors;
gl choosing an suditor (if required) and agrecing on the fee, and
T : : .
«({{lasking questions about how the eespesstsen crporaliog is managed.
4.3 General meetings

oo
<

-

& nddert 3= 127 ¢m

il

Formatted: Space Before: © pt, A%er: 0 pt, Line spaong:
Maltigle 1154

Formatted: bullet 1, Line soacng: Multiple 1,15 &,
Numbered + Level: | + Numbering Style: 2, B, ¢, . » Start
A3+ Nigrerwet: Lot + Algned at: 063 om + Tab aftue:
1.27 cm + Indent at- 1.27 om

Formatted: Soace Defore: O o, Afer: 0 pt, Linw spacng:
Meliple 1154

Formatted: Line spucing: Multiphe 1,15 &, Numbened +
Level: 1 « Numbering Stlec a, b, c, . ¢ Startats L o
Ngrerwot: Lift + Aligned at: 0.6 om + Tab aftwe: 127 ¢m
» Indent 2= 127 om

Formatted: Line spacing: Multiple 1,15 K, Sumbered +
Linl 1« Numbering St A, B, .+ Ratats 1 +
Algrement: Left « Aligned at: 0.63 om + Tab after: 1.27 cm
* Indent 2= 127 o

Formatted: Line spacing: Multiple 1.15 K, Numbered +
Ll 1+ Numberng St 4, b, .+ Santats 1 +
Left « Algned at: 0.63 am + Tab after: 1.27 om

~
at a directors’ meeting or by a circulating resolution,
AswerberThe required munber of members can adeequest the disectors to call as- .

.

general meeting.
Fhedivectorimust-ealishe Number of members Number of members
in Corporation reauired to ask for a general meeting
P
alo 10 manbers = 1 member
11 to 29 members = 3 members
Jhe members” request st
e be in wnting:
e be signed by the members making ¢ e
e __nominate n member to be the contact member om behalf of the members making
the request: and
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s be given to the Corporation.

Within 21 days_of ssesiving the request, the directors st gither sall the mgsting™ = = { Formatted: Nomal, Line spacing: Mutiole 1.15 § )
oxapply to the Registrar to deny the request,
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At least 21 days’ notice must be given. “{mug;?mm: © 2, After: 0 o, Linw spacng:

Notice must be given to members, directors, officers, the contact person and the auditor

(if the essparatsonC arporation has one).
The notice must set out:
o the place, date and time for the meeting, += = = Formatted: Bady, Line spacing: Multiche 1.15 §, Bulleted + l
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* if a member can appoint a proxy.
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A notice of meeting:
o sent by post is taken to be given three days after it is posted, og - = = 4 Formatted: Line spacing: Mutiphs 1.15 b )
e sent by fax. or other electronic means, s taken to be given on the business day
after it 1s sent.

A general mecting. or a notice of a general mecting which is required to be given* - = | Formatted: Soace theforw: © pt, Alter: 0 o2, Linw spacng: J
according to these rules, or any proceeding at a general mecting. 1 not invalidated Buitpe 1,138

merely because of the accidental omission to give notice of the general mecting. or

because a person does not receive the notice of the general mecting.
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210 10 members = L member

Llto 29 members = 3 members
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The esspasasianC orporation must give notice of the resolution to all people entitled to

it (see rule 4.5).

The eorperstsenCoporation miust conssder the resolution at the next general mecting

which 15 bemng beld more than 28 days after the notice has been sent out.

4.7 Quorum at general meetings

The mumber of members to make a quorum 1s five members.
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The quorum must be present during the whole meeting. If there 15 no quorum afier one
hour, the mecting is adjourned until the next week at the same time. If there s still no
quorum. the meeting 13 cancelled.

4.8  Chairing general meetings

The chairperson will chair geperal meetings. If the chawperson s not available, the
deputy chairperson will chair the meeting. If neither chairperson nor deputy chairperson
are available, the members must elect someone to chair the mecting.

4.9  Using technology

General meetings can be held at more than one place using any technology that gives
members awav-abiakaneparas 1 whole a reasonable opportunity to participate.

4.10  Voring

Each member has one vote,

The chairperson has one vote (if he or she is a member) plus a casting vote.

A challenge to a night to vote at a general meeting may oaly be made at the meeting,
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

The chamrperson declares the results of the vote, on a show of hands, or when a poll 1
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

eorpasaisens orporation's pame, the proxy's name, the meeting where the proxy is
going, and it must be signed by the member.

The eompemsenCompontion must receive the proxy’s appointment at least Jsm”tuht?wom: O pt. After: 0 pt, Line spacng:
badice e saseting. Makiche 1.15

A person must not be a proxy for more than three members.

5.  Directors

5.1 Number of directors

The number of dircctors of the wespemienCorpomtion s decided at the general
mecting.
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The munmmum sumber 18 five directors, and the maximum number 16 smefowteen

dircctors, on the condition that the Registrar grants an exemption pussuant to Part 6-8
of the CATSI Act If the Registrar declines to grant an exemption pursuant 1o Part 6-8
of the CATSI Act mnax: 15 9 directors.
52 Eiigibility of directors
A director must bes
et yearroid
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Directors must give the wospessison( orporation their consent in writing to act as a= - ~ | Fermatted: Space Before: O pt, Afer: 0 pt, Line spacng:
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The Corpoeation can apposnt a director by resolutson passed at a general meeting.
The eospesetsenCorporation must send the Registrar the director’s personal details=- = = 7 Formatted: Space Before: @ pt, After: 0 pt, Line spacing:
within 28 days after they are appointed. Hee—vosy B S PR, Beib 1133

Nonh el Peersidetatiod
5.5 Directors’ terms of appointment

Directors arc appointed by resolution passed in general meeting for a term of up to two
years (being the peniod specified in s 246:25(2) of the CATSI Act).

If the Rogistrar grants an excmption pursuant to «-++-5Py1 6-% of the CATSI Act,
directors may be appointed for a term of up to three years.

Directors are cligible to be re-elected.
5.6 How to become an office bearer (for example, chairperson, vice-chairperson,

treasurer)
The charperson wand deputy chauperson are cach elected by resolution passed
general meeting for a term of up to two years.
=tho-Rogiviwm-—grents-on "I".""'""' "';""" ll‘ S0k he-CATHE-Aviy-dae
e T e b g g e e g e e e e
W
If the Registrar grants an exemption pursuant to «<-+48.88a:t 6.8 of the CATSI Act, thes - - - Formatted: Space Before: @ pt, After: 0 pt, Une spacing:
chawperon and deputy chaisperson may_cach be appointed for a term of up to three i 1153
years.
5.7 How 1o fill vacancies
Darectors can fill casual director vacancies, inkluding office bearers.
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Darectors can appomt somconc as a director to make up a quorum. Their appointment
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

The posmbenCorporation must send the Registrar she—disestorc—porannl
desaslanotice within 28 days after they stop betng a director. Fhevorporaison—onn-sse
tore e et YNV R

5.9  How to remove a director

By the members:

e A notice for a resolution to remove a director must be given to thes -~ mmrm’m;ﬁ;,r° ]
sorpasstienC orpomnon at least 21 days before the next general meeting (or
AGM).

o The eorpersisenl orporation must give the director concerned a copy of the- = - { Formatted: Line spacng: Mutole 1.15 § )
Botice as soon as possible.

* The director can give the eespessisen crporalion a wntten statement and speak
at the mecting. The statement must be given to everyone entitled to notice of the

meeting (sec rule 4.5).
By other directors: --= m:anm:oummoumm ]
e Directors can only remove a director if the director fals 1o attend three or more™ - _
consecutive directors’ meetings without a reasonable excuse. I 2 )
e Directors must give the director a2 notice in writing and they must give the
director 14 days to object in writing.
o If the director objects, they cannot remove the director. The director can hien
only-+hen be removed at a general meeting by resolution.
5.10  Directors’ and officers’ duties -—-‘[m?mw:oumoumm
The duties are:
o aduty of care and diligence - = = 4 Formatted: Line spacing: Mutiphe 1.15 b = |
e aduty of good fasth
* aduty to disclose a conflict of interest (matenial personal interest)
* aduty not to mproperly use position or information
e aduty to not trade while msolvent.
The business of the eospessivonl crporatiog 1 to be managed by or under the direction
of directors. The directors may exercise all the powers of the eornpersten orportion
except any that the CATSI Act or this rule book requires the esspeomiten orporation to
exercise in a general mecting.
S5.11  Cenfllict of interest (material personal interest) o> mrmzoumommm

A director who has a material personal interest in a eespeossttent orporition matter mist
tell the other directors.
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The director must give detmls of what the iterest s and how nt relates 10 the
worpeswiven crporation. These details must be given at a directors’ mecting as soon as
possible. and must be recorded in the minutes of the mecting.

A director who has a matenal personal interest must not:

e be present at the directors’ mecting while the matter in question is being® - = { Formatted: Lnw soacng: Mltoh 1.35 &

considered
& vote on the matter
ualess allowed to do so under the CATSI Act.

512 Paymem ~--{

A director cannot be pasd a salary or sitting fees for their work as darectors.
Directors may be paid if they are employed by the eemperstsenCorporation. or if they
have a contract to provade goods or services 10 the eespesnisenC orporalion (so long as
the director has exercised any duty to disclose a conflict of mterest and has followed
the processes detailed in S.11 and 5.13).

The vesporsison( crporntion may pay the directors’ travelling and other expenses for
attending mectings or to do with other eetpesmitent arporation busmess.

5.13  Related parly benefit

If sespormisonthe Corporation wants to give a financial benefit to a director or related
party (such as a spouse, child or parent of a director) it must comply with pesiPart 6-6
of the CATSI Act and, where required, follow the procedure to get the approval of the
members.

514 Directors’ meerings

Directors must meet at least every 424 months.

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

the deputy chairperson,

If the chaisperson and deputy chairperson are pot present at o meeting, the directors can
elect a director to chair shesw-meetings.

Formatted: Space Before: O pt, ARer: 0 pt, Line spacing:
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517 Using technology

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
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6.  Contact person or secretary -
The contact person or secretary must be at least 18 years old.

¢ contact seeretary must give the C ton his or her consent wn writis
1o becorue 3 contact ore being appomted

The directors appoint a CONACE Prson OF secretary.
The directors decide the contact person or secretary”s pay and terms and conditions of

employment, if any.
The coatact person of secretary must pass on any comrespondence received to at least

e

one of the directors within 14 days.

- . hac.ask St ol
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; i _
Fhrecomporetron L e Corporation must send the Registrar a contact person or secretary’s* = - Immum: O pt, After: 0 pt, Lins spacing: ]
personal details within 28 days after they are appointed +SeeNonfrentromofmriamse
ter corposaiion officers ' detenls fonm)

Records

The earpasstienCorporation must keep the:

minutes of meetings (in writing or as an awhio or video recordmgs ), .

rule book (constitutions).

register of members and former members;

names and addresses of directors, officers and the contact person,_and
fmancial  records that  comrectly  record  and  explain the
wotpersienL orporation’s transactions and financial position and that would
cuable true and farr financial reports to be prepared and audited.

These records must be kept at the weperstton—C crporation’s document access address
or regastered office.

8.

Finances -

The eorpormsenCorporation must follow these procedures.,
All money of the eespesstrent orporation must be deposited into a corporation® = = Formatted: Line scacng: Mutiph 1.15 6 =

bank account.

The eorperstron{ orporation musst give receipts for all moncy it receives.

All payments made out of the esspamslensl orporation’s money must be
supported by adequate documents which explain the nature and purpose of the
payment,

All accounts must be approved for payment at a directors’ meeting or in
accordance with valid delegations.

All cheques. withdrawal forms. clectromic funds transfer (EFT) transactions,
and other banking documents must be sagned by at beast two directors.

-

-
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9.  Application of funds
Directors can use the moncy and property of the eespermitenC orporation to camry out its
business. They cammot give the moncy and property to members of the

Note: This rule does not stop the eerpormtionCorpomtion from making reasonable
payment to;
* amember in their capacity as an employee w = = Formatted: Line soucing: Multich 1,35 b )

e a member under a contract for goods or services provided.

e {mmm O pt, Aler: 0 pt, Line spacing:
Moliphe 1.15 4

10. Winding up

The winding up of the corparattonCoporation will follow the CATSI Act.
If the corpomtronCarporation 1s wound up all debes. habilities and costs of winding up
must be paid first. If there arc any assets keft over the members can pass a special
resolution about how to distnbute those assets. However surplus sssets of the
worpeswiren orporation cannot be given 1o any member or any person to be held on
trust for any member.

iz Diopile reeollOR : <= oo el Sa e s e s e
11.1__Resolving internal Corperation disputes
If a dispute anvses: between o member or dizector and.

&__ous orors wamben

e one or more directors. og

= __the Corporation
about » matter other than » native title dispute deseribed i mle 11 2Error! References - - | Formatted: Space Before: © pt, After: 0 pt, Line spacng:
source not found., the parties must fisst try to resolve it themselves. LN
If the dispute is pot resolved within 10 business days, any party may give a dispute
notice to the other parties.
The dispute notice must be in writing and must say what the dispute is about. It must
be given to the esspesniron crporation,

: el . ' . : ;

I a dispuse or any part of a dispute refates 1o the meanmg of any provision of the CATSI

¢t or the C ton's rale ¢ directors or any party to the disputc may sec
mion from the Registrar a the correct meamng of the relevamt ston. Tl
Registrar's opmion will not be binding on the partics to a daspute
nght to 255184 fi the Registrar sreale 1 10 request
: | e Wit x be Reot ¢ d
assistance 10 resoive the matier,

The directors must belp the parties oy 10 resolve the dispute within 20 business days* - - ms.umm:ou‘m 0 pt, Linw spacing:
after the sespermienCorpontion receives the notice, This may melude thrd pasty oo 113
A e
If the directors cannot resolve the dispute, it must be put to the members to resolve ata
general meeting.
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14. Evidence of consultation and consent -~==

(2)_The smisve-titeCorporation must make and keep records for all:
(1)_sonsulations with affested commion law holders aretnkeenabont a Native
1 spon, sl a record of 1 s that affected co
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(v) consultanions with  Specified  Persons  about a  Compensation
ication, el a of i
1ve their ¢ t: and
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sosThe Corpomation will provide a copy of the certificate in relation to

consultation and consent to a pervon who asks for it in writing. if the person:
(1) ic a comuon law holder in relation to the decision recorded m the
certificate: or

s 2 substantial mterest m the decision-seoeiroe

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering

Formatted: bullet 1, Line spacing: Multiple LIS B,
Numbered + Lovel: 2 + NumBening Stybe: L L 0, + St
1« Abgnment: Left » Algned at: 1.9 0m » Tab after: 254
o o Indeet 3 254 0

15. Powers
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(a) Subject to the provisions of the CATSI Act. the Native Title Act. and the PBC+ - - -
Regulations, the corporsiron orporation shall have power to do all such kawful
things as may scem to the directors necessary to carry out the objectives of
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eorporaentlic Coponation.

(b) Without limating the gencrality of sub-rule 15(a). for the purpose of performing
its functions the Corporation may. on behalf of the native tithe holders (and as
authorised by them). enter into agreements. be consulted, and exercise
procedisral rights.

-

16. Amendment of these rules

Formatted: Soace Befory: O pt, Aler: 0 pt, Lk spacing:
Malple 1154

(a) Subject to the Native Title Act and the PBC Regulations, amending these rules* - - -
mvolves three steps. The amendment does not occur uanil the third step s

complete.
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(b) The eerporatienCorporation can only amend these rules by resolution passed by
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




17. Dictionary o = = 1 Formatted: Soace eforv: © ot

Aboriginal means a person who s a member of the Aboriginal race of Australia.
AGM means annual general meeting.

CATSI Act means the Corporations (Aboriginal Awdand Torves Strait Islander) Acrs - - | Formatted: Soace tworw: © ot

2006 (Cth).
CLA means communaty living area,
Corporation means the Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Abonginal Corporation RNTEC,

Comumon law holder has the same meanmg as m the Native Title Ace

Community living area means an arca granted or created as an Aboriginal community= - - | Formatted: Scace Before: 0 pt
living arca by or under a law of the Northern Temitory.

Note: Land grasted 10 2a assocation under subsecton 48(1A) of the Lands Acguisition Acr of e

Nortbers Terntory (iachadiog S22 land an deld by 3 succenscr %0 30 390C13hos) it 3 Commumaty

livisg area (see ¢ 4(¢) 20d 31(1)(b)Xn) of the Nerthern Terrttory Natomal Emergency Response Act

Native Tutle Act,
Native title rights and/or interests has the same meaning as i the Natrve Title Act.

NLC means the Northern Land Council and 1ts successors.
(Note: The NLC 15 a body which s established under s 21 of @e Abovigiaa! Land Righes (Novthern
Terrivory) Act 1976, and which don been determmed snder & 202 of the Native Title Act v 3
represcstative Abongisal Torres Sweant Ilsader body for the sorthers half of e Norbers
Temsery
NLC Executive Council is a committee comprised of NLC members appointed from
time to tune pursuant to s 29A of the Aboriginal Land Rights (Novthern Territory) Act
1976 (Cth).

PBC means prescnbed body corporate.

ALH" gaen = "

Registrar means the Registrar of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Corporationss - = | Formatted: Space Before: 0 pt

appointed under the CATSI Act.



Schedule 1—Application for membership form

Application for membership
B e Lot L B T T i
Top End (Dsfanlt PRCCLA) Al 1C tops ENTBC
L (Gt nasse of appheant)
(st mame of applacant)
of (address of applicant)
e i fom ket
membership of Abongiaal Corporation RNTHC S
ip o corporation)
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

NOTE: This form should be completed and given to the eorperatienCorporation
before the person is appointed as a director—section 246-10(1) of the CATSI Act.




From:
To: Harriet Roberts

Cc: : ; Huey. Andrew
Subject: Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC - Amended rule book
Date: Thursday, 9 March 2023 9:16:00 AM
Attachments: image001.png
Top End Default - Compare and contrast - ORIC Comments.docx
image002.png
image003.png
image004.png

Hello Harriet,

| apologise that ORIC has not reverted to you with comments on the draft rule book you
submitted in December. Andrew Huey has asked | reply to you on his behalf.

Please find some brief comments in the attached ‘compare and contrast’ document which we
generated from the amended rule book you submitted, where ORIC makes some brief
suggestions with respect to the NTLA requirements.

As you would know there was productive conversation here in Canberra in January with respect
to the alighment of the requirements under section 141-25(2) with the membership model
currently adopted by the Top End (Default PBC/CLA). As was discussed in the meeting, the
amendments currently proposed in the attached rule book are clarificatory in nature and at this
stage do not propose to modify the membership eligibility rule (rule 3.2). | understand NLC
continue to consider this question.

We make some brief additional suggestions with respect to other NTLA requirements, for your
consideration.

Kind regards,

_ | Acting General Counsel, Legislation and Policy

Office of the Registrar of Indigenous Corporations

SO <o | 500 622 431

Ngunnawal Country | Charles Perkins House, 16 Bowes Place, Phillip, ACT 2606 | PO Box 29
WODEN ACT 2606

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

Ph:

Emall: roberh@nicorg.ay | Website: www.nic orgay

Disclaimer

The information contained in this cormmunication from the sender is confidential, It is intended solely for
use by the recipient and others authorized to recelve it. If you are not the reciplent, you are hereby
notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution or taking action in relation of the contents of this
information is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful,

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



Subject: NLC and ORIC Top End Default PBC catchup [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Location: CEO Meeting Room

Start: Fri 31/03/2023 3:00 PM

End: Fri 31/03/2023 4:00 PM

Recurrence: (none)

Meeting Status: Accepted

Organizer S47F

From: NI @1 orz.ou>
Sent: Monday, 20 March 2023 3:55 PM

To:_; Joe Martin-Jard;__; Stroud, Tricia; Huey, Andrew; CEO
Meeting Room

Subject: Teams meeting with Northern Land Council and the Registrar - Update [SEC=OFFICIAL]

When: Friday, 31 March 2023 1:30 PM-2:30 PM (UTC+09:30) Darwin.

Where: CEO Meeting Room

From: @oric.gov.au>
Sent: Monday, 20 March 2023 2:22 PM

@nlc.org.au>
@oric.gov.au>

Subject: RE: Teams meeting with Northern Land Council - Update [SEC=OFFICIAL]
OFFICIAL

HeIIo-

| have returned from a few days leave and am just responding to you on this request.

Tricia would be available at that time on the 31° and Andrew Huey (Deputy Registrar) would also join so please feel
free to send an invitation to both when you get an opportunity?

Tricia.stroud@oric.gov.au Andrew.huey@oric.gov.au

Regards

_ | Executive Assistant | Registrar

Office of the Registrar of Indigenous Corporations

| freecall 1800 622 431
Turrbal and Yuggera Country | Level 19, 215 Adelaide Street QLD 4000 | PO Box 29 WODEN ACT 2606

oric.gov.au



ORIC acknowledges the traditional custodians of country throughout Australia and their continuing
connection to land, waters and community. We pay our respect to them and their cultures and to their
elders both past and present.

RNTBCs,
Have you updated your rule book?

Revise your rules for membership and disputes
before 25 March 2023

Sent: Thursday, 16 March 2023 5:56 PM

To: @oric.gov.au>
Ce: ,@nlc.org.au>;—@nlc.org.au>
Subject: Teams meeting with Northern Land Council - Update

Dear-

| hope you are keeping well.

Registrar Stroud mentioned at our last meeting that we would catch up again on Teams in a couple of weeks for an
update to discuss matters.

| am wondering if the Registrar is available on 31 March 2023 in the afternoon after 2.00 pm Darwin time to arrange
a meeting with Joe Martin-Jard. Alternatively, please let us know what dates and times will suit anciilIll and | will
work that in with our CEO's schedule.

Kind regards
Lawyer (Community Planning & Development Projects)

Northern Land Council



NORTHERN
LAND COUNCIL

”~ | O < o' y 15
AW Seand, WA Dee, NANE e

45 Mitchell St, Darwin NT 0800

GPO Box 1222, Darwin NT 0801

_inc.org.au | Website: www.nic.org.au

Disclaimer

The information contained in this communication from the sender is confidential. It is intended solely for use by the
recipient and others authorized to receive it. If you are not the recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure,
copying, distribution or taking action in relation of the contents of this information is strictly prohibited and may be
unlawful.

This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived by Mimecast Ltd,
an innovator in Software as a Service (SaaS) for business. Providing a safer and more useful place for your human
generated data. Specializing in; Security, archiving and compliance. To find out more Click Here.

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

Meeting ID: 449 861 673 767

Passcode: vziXjo
Download Teams | Join on the web

Learn More | Meeting options

Disclaimer

The information contained in this communication from the sender is confidential. It is intended solely for use by the recipient
and others authorized to receive it. If you are not the recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution
or taking action in relation of the contents of this information is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful.

This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived by Mimecast Ltd, an
innovator in Software as a Service (SaaS) for business. Providing a safer and more useful place for your human generated
data. Specializing in; Security, archiving and compliance. To find out more Click Here.



From: (Protected)

€

Subject: RE: NLC TED PBC [SEC=OFFICIAL]

Date: Wednesday, 19 April 2023 2:49:37 PM
OFFICIAL

Not at all ©

From: SEN N o' <o >

Sent: Wednesday, 19 April 2023 1:59 PM

To: SEEE N -2 <o 2.

Subject: RE: NLC TED PBC [SEC=OFFICIAL]

Do you mind if | call-?

From: SR - .. -.

Sent: Wednesday, 19 April 2023 12:12 PM

Subject: FW: NLC TED PBC [SEC=OFFICIAL]

OFFICIAL
H- —please see- email below. Is there an update on the TED PBC please? Thanks,-

From: SEEE I - - <. .

Sent: Wednesday, 19 April 2023 11:53 AM

Subject NLC TED PBC [SEC= OFFICIAL]

OFFICIAL

Hi .

We're hoping you might be able to provide an update on where things are up to with rulebook
changes for the TED PBC.

- flagged our last engagement on this was early Jan/Feb and at the time, the NLC was in the
process of reconsidering its amendments and approach following initial ORIC review and
feedback.

Any update you can provide would be great.
Also happy to chat if easier.

Thanks

I
S0 e

PBC Policy | Land and Native Title Branch
National Indigenous Australians Agency (NIAA)



Note: | work part-time and am not in the office on Thursdays.

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
To: Stroud, Tricia
Subject: FW: Top End Default [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Date: Thursday, 20 July 2023 3:21:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png

image003.png

image004.png

image005.png

Just FYl below —1am trying to get a copy of the correspondence

From: LA 1 -2 <0 21>

Sent: Thursday, 20 July 2023 2:50 PM

To: SR © ' <0 2>

Subject: RE: Top End Default [SEC=0OFFICIAL]

OFFICIAL
No worries, thank you — as a heads up one of the PBCs (Beetaloo) has written to Jody this week,
with concerns about TED rulebook compliance, and is likely to write to Minister next week, and
potentially will write to ORIC as well. We will likely need to brief on this next week, so we will
likely seek input from your team.

From: SEERR I - <. 2.

Sent: Thursday, 20 July 2023 2:46 PM

Subject: RE: Top End Default [SEC=OFFICIAL]

Not yet-— Its on my list but to the extent that its possible | would be keen to circulate a draft
to you.

From: SEEER N - - < -

Sent: Thursday, 20 July 2023 2:44 PM

Subject: Top End Default [SEC=OFFICIAL]

OFFICIAL

-

Following from our catch up a few weeks ago, just wanted to touch base and see if there has
been any update on letter to NLC, re TED rulebook?

Happy to chat, if easier.

Cheers

Director



PBC Policy | Land and Native Title Branch | Economic Empowerment Group
National Indigenous Australians Agency

W. hiaa.gov.au w. indigenous.gov.au
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

Cc: Stroud, Tricia; Huey, Andrew
Subject: FW: Attn Ms Stroud - Non-compliance with CATSI Act/Top End Default PBC [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Date: Monday, 24 July 2023 12:01:06 PM

Attachments: 20230720 ORIC letter re CATSI TED PBC FINAL.docx (1).pdf

Hi all — we have received the attached letter from SRS (Chair Nurrdalinji Native Title
Aboriginal Corporation) complaint about the Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation
RNTBC and it is non-compliance with section 141-25(2) CATSI Act in its rule book..is asking
what steps ORIC is taking to ensure compliance with the provision. Note in the Iette- us
to consider using powers to appoint a special administrator.

Can | refer this matter to the native title section to respond SRR o" Tricia’s behalf?
Refer JN1559272.

Rega rds-

From: Nurrdalinji Contact <contact@nurrdalinji.org.au>

Sent: Thursday, 20 July 2023 8:00 AM

To: ORIC Info <info@oric.gov.au>

Subject: Attn Ms Stroud - Non-compliance with CATSI Act/Top End Default PBC

Dear Ms Stroud
Please find attached a letter from the Nurrdalinji Native Title Aboriginal Corporation.

Thank you for considering it.

Chair



Nurrdalinji Native Title Aboriginal Corporation
ABN: 32 608 508 769
ICN: 9392

20 July 2023

Ms Tricia Stroud

Registrar of Indigenous Corporations

Office of the Registrar of Indigenous Corporations
Level 1, Charles Perkins House

16 Bowes Place

Woden ACT 2606

By email: info@oric.gov.au

Dear Ms Stroud,
Non-compliance of Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation with CATSI Act

| refer to my letter to the Directors of the Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC
(“TED PBC”), dated 5 May 2023, which | copied to ORIC, in which | drew their attention to s 141-25(2)
of the Corporations (Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander) Act 2006 (Cth) (“CATSI Act”) and TED PBC'’s
non-compliance with that provision.

Nurrdalinji received no reply from TED PBC or its parent body - the Northern Land Council (“NLC”) to
that letter.

The TED PBC remains non-compliant with s 141-25(2) of the CATSI Act.

Nurrdalinji would like to know what steps you and your Office are taking, or propose to take, to
enforce compliance with this provision.

About Nurrdalinji Native Title Aboriginal Corporation

Nurrdalinji Native Title Aboriginal Corporation (“Nurrdalinji”), was registered with the Office of the
Registrar of Indigenous Corporations on 9 October 2020, following an historic meeting of native title
holders from throughout the Beetaloo Basin held at Daly Waters.

The name “Nurrdalinji” means “mixed tribe” in Alawa language, reflecting both our members’
diversity and unity. Our members are over 60 native title holders from 11 native title determination
areas across the Beetaloo Sub-basin area of the Northern Territory. Membership is open to all adult
native title holders for these determinations.

Nurrdalinji’s objects include becoming the registered native title body corporate for all or some of
the determinations in our area, but to date that has not occurred. In the meantime, we aim to
support Beetaloo Sub-basin native title holders who want to be consulted about what happens on
our country. We want all native title holders to be heard and to be able to participate in determining
our future.



TED PBC

As you may know, the TED PBC is the registered native title body corporate (“RNTBC”) for all 86
determinations of native title in the NLC’s administrative area. Its permitted members are not
common law native title holders, but are instead the members of the NLC’s Executive Council. These
nine NLC members are also TED PBC’s directors. The TED PBC has no bank account, holds no assets
and has no staff. It is entirely controlled and administered by the NLC. It is truly a body that exists in
name only. In effect, the NLC has made itself both representative body and RNTBC: principal and
agent; client and legal representative.

This is a highly unusual arrangement which, in Nurrdalinji’s view, is also contrary to the plain
intention of native title law. There is no comparable entity to the TED PBC in any other region in
Australia outside the NLC’s representative body area. In other regions, representative bodies actively
support and facilitate native title holders to establish their own PBCs following a determination of
native title. Native title holders in the NLC’s representative body area, however, are entirely shut out
from their RNTBC, and its governance and business remains entirely obscure to them.

RNTBC amendments to the CATSI Act

As you know, s 141-25(2) of the CATSI Act was introduced by the Native Title Legislation Amendment
Act 2021. The Explanatory Memorandum noted the central place played by RNTBC’s in the
administration of native title. According to the Explanatory Memorandum the purpose of the RNTBC
amendments was clear. It stated:

“These amendments collectively seek to ensure that common law holders enjoy and have
control over their native title rights and interests, in particular, following a determination of
native title.”

It noted that:

“RNTBCs are the primary bodies that perform functions in relation to native title rights and
interests. Accordingly, membership of an RNTBC allows common law holders to exercise
important rights in relation to their native title rights and interests.”

It referenced the views of the United Nations Human Rights Council and concluded:

“The Bill will advance the rights of the common law holders by creating new requirements
for RNTBCs relating to eligibility for membership and limiting the grounds for cancelling
membership of an RNTBC. These measures will assist to prevent RNTBCs from arbitrarily
acting to exclude common law holders from membership and to ensure that all common law
holders may be represented in an RNTBC, directly or indirectly. This will allow common law
holders to be involved in decision-making that may affect their native title rights and
interests.”

Request for action and information

The situation established by the TED PBC is precisely what the RNTBC amendments was intended to
guard against. In the Beetaloo Sub-basin area and across the Top End of the Northern Territory,
common law native title holders may not, amongst other things:

e become a member of their RNTBC,
® become a director,
e obtain access to books and records,



® requisition a general meeting, or even
e attend or ask questions at an AGM.

This is a disgraceful situation, which the NLC and TED PBC appear to be perpetuating with impunity.
This is of particular concern to native title holders in the Beetaloo Sub-basin area at present, given
the pressures we are feeling as our country is the subject of intense attention from the gas industry
and the Northern Territory and Commonwealth governments.

For years now we have been raising matters like this with the NLC and the TED PBC, yet there has
been no move to address them. As | noted at the beginning of this letter, we have had no response to
our 5 May 2023 letter to TED PBC and ORIC’s website shows that its Rule Book remains unchanged.

| do note from ORIC’s website, however, that the membership of TED PBC has recently changed. It
now appears to have 17 members despite the fact that, to our knowledge, the NLC’s Executive
Council still has just 9 members. This can only mean that TED PBC is not following its own Rule Book
about entitlement to membership.

Could you please advise, considering your responsibility for administering the CATSI Act as it applies to
RNTBCs, what steps you and your office are taking, or proposing to take, to ensure the TED PBC
complies with s 141-25(2) of the CATSI Act? You have a range of tools available to you under the Act.
However, it seems to us that the NLC and TED PBC have no intention of complying. We urge you to
consider exercising your authority under Division 487 of the CATSI Act to appoint a special
administrator.

Conclusion

The control that the TED PBC (and consequently the NLC) exerts over native title holders is profound:
the NLC’s TED PBC manages and controls the native title rights and interests of native title holders
over an area of the Northern Territory that is more than double the size of Tasmania, and close to the
size of Victoria.

In the meantime, we are also taking some other steps aimed at achieving a lawful and responsive
RNTBC. As you may know, the Australian National Audit Office (ANAO) is currently conducting a
performance audit of the governance of the NLC. We have made both a primary and supplementary
submission to this audit, noting other extremely troubling aspects of the TED PBC, its relationship
with the NLC and its ability to properly represent native title holders and their interests.

| will also be writing to the National Indigenous Australians Agency about its continued funding of the
TED PBC.

If anything | have said above is unclear, or you would like to explore these matters further with us,
please let me know.

| look forward to your early response.

Yours faithfully,

Chairperson



From:

To: Stroud, Tricia

Cc: Huey, Andrew

Subject: TED correspondence to NIAA [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Date: Monday, 24 July 2023 3:27:00 PM
Attachments: Attachment A.pdf

Tricia attached for your information is the separate correspondence that the NIAA is responding
to with respect to TED.

From: SEN N © - <o 2.

Sent: Monday, 24 July 2023 2:56 PM

To: S - <ov.2.>

Subject: FY| [SEC=OFFICIAL]

OFFICIAL

SR | -

PBC Policy | Land and Native Title Branch
National Indigenous Australians Agency (NIAA)



Nurrdalinji Native Title Aboriginal Corporation
ABN: 32 608 508 769
ICN: 9392

20 July 2023

Ms Jody Broun

Chief Executive Officer

National Indigenous Australians Agency
Charles Perkins House

16 Bowes Place

Woden ACT 2606

By email: jody.broun@niaa.gov.au

Dear Ms Broun,
Non-compliance of Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation with CATSI Act

| am the Chairperson of Nurrdalinji Native Title Aboriginal Corporation (“Nurrdalinji”) and | write to
you about the Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation (“TED PBC”) and its parent body the
Northern Land Council (“NLC”), which | understand is funded by the National Indigenous Australians
Agency (“NIAA”).

About Nurrdalinji Native Title Aboriginal Corporation

By way of introduction, Nurrdalinji was registered with the Office of the Registrar of Indigenous
Corporations on 9 October 2020, following an historic meeting of native title holders from
throughout the Beetaloo Sub-basin are held at Daly Waters.

The name “Nurrdalinji” means “mixed tribe” in Alawa language, reflecting both our members’
diversity and unity.

Our members are over 60 native title holders from 11 native title determination areas across the
Beetaloo Sub-basin area of the Northern Territory. Membership is open to all adult native title
holders for these determinations.

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

Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation

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

This is a highly unusual arrangement. There is no comparable entity to the TED PBC in any other
region in Australia outside the NLC's representative body area. In other regions, representative
bodies actively support and facilitate native title holders to establish their own PBCs following a
determination of native title. Native title holders in the NLC’s representative body area, however, are
entirely shut out from their RNTBC, and its governance and business remains entirely obscure to
them.

We understand that NIAA provides funding for the ongoing operations of the TED PBC. We see from
the last Northern Land Council’s (NLC) 2021-2023 Annual Report (p 153) that the NLC received
$500,000 in that financial year for “Prescribed Bodies Corporate support funding”. As | have said,
TED PBC has no bank account and unlike other RNTBCs, does not publicly record any funding
income.

We therefore wish to bring to NIAA’s attention the fact that the TED PBC arrangement is contrary to
the plain intent of native title law. TED PBC is, amongst other things, non-compliant with the
important new provision in s 141-25(2) of the Corporations (Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander) Act
2006 (Cth) (“CATSI Act”).

As you may know, s 141-25(2) of the CATSI Act was one of a number of new RNTBC laws introduced
by the Native Title Legislation Amendment Act 2021. The Explanatory Memorandum for the Bill
noted the central place played by RNTBC’s in the administration of native title. According to the
Explanatory Memorandum the purpose of the RNTBC amendments was clear. It stated:

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

The way in which s 141-25(2) of the CATSI Act contributes to this is to impose certain requirements
on the constitutions of RNTBCs. It says that an RNTBC’s constitution:



“must include eligibility requirements for membership that provide for all the common law
holders of native title to be represented, directly or indirectly.”

The situation established by the TED PBC is precisely what the RNTBC amendments was intended to
guard against. Its constitution says that membership is only open to the members of the NLC’s
Executive Council and that only these members are eligible to be directors. As a result, in the
Beetaloo Sub-basin area and across the Top End of the Northern Territory, common law native title
holders cannot, amongst other things:

become a member of their RNTBC,

become a director,

obtain access to the RNTBC’s books and records,
requisition a general meeting, or even

attend or ask questions at an AGM.

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
our 5 May 2023 letter to TED PBC and the website of the Office of the Registrar of Indigenous
Corporations shows that its constitution remains unchanged.

This is not the only way the TED PBC arrangement is operating outside of the law. Through the TED
PBC arrangement, the NLC has effectively ignored important aspects of the scheme in the Native
Title Act 1993 (“NTA”) under which, amongst other things:

e separation between the native title representative body on the one hand and registered
native title bodies corporate on the other is essential (e.g. s 201B(1) of the NTA, which has
effect that an RNTBC is not eligible to be recognised as a representative body), and

e representative bodies are permitted to perform their facilitation and assistance functions
only if requested to do so by the RNTBC (or other relevant stakeholder) (s 203BB(2) of the
NTA).

The NLC has collapsed the distinction between representative body and RNTBC into one, effectively
denying common law holders essential agency in relation to our own affairs.

We also have strong reasons to doubt that the TED PBC was lawfully determined to be the PBC for
the 11 determinations of native title Nurrdalinji draws its members from. This is because consent of
the kind required by s 59A of the NTA (and see also reg. 4A of the Native Title (Prescribed Bodies
Corporate) Regulations 1999).

Conclusion

| have brought these matters to your attention because we are concerned that NIAA may be
considering further funding the TED PBC. | am sure you agree that NIAA should not continue to fund
the TED PBC if it does not comply with important Commonwealth law.

Could you please give consideration to the important matters raised in this letter and advise how you
view the TED PBC’s non-compliance and what you plan to do in response?



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

| will also be writing to the Registrar of Indigenous Corporations about action the Registrar might
consider taking under the Corporations (Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander) Act 2006.

If anything | have said above is unclear, or you would like to explore these matters further with us,
please let me know.

| look forward to your early response.

Yours faithfully,

Chairperson



Sent: Monday, 24 July 2023 12:51 PM
To: Stroud, Tricia <Tricia, Stroud@oric.gov.au .-,'_@0.'1( go-.-..au:',-
_@on( gov.au‘--,—@a‘;r:r.go-.' au>

Cc: Huey, Andrew <Andrew.Huey@oric.gov.au>
Subject: RE: Attn Ms Stroud - Non-compliance with CATSI Act/Top End Default PBC
[SEC=OFFICIAL]J

Yes all good

| Senior Native Title Engagement Officer, Native Tithe Unat

Office of the Registrar of Indigenous Corporations

N <! 1800 622 431

Level 7, Citi Central Building, 46-48 Sheridan Street, Cairns QLD 4870 | PO Box 29 WODEN ACT 2606

Ofic.8ov.au

The department acknowledges the traditional custodians of country throughout Australa and their
continuing connection to land, waters and community, We pay our respect 1o them and thew

cultures and to their elders both past and present.



Got questions on how to govern your corporation? Check your rule book for the answers

From: Stroud, Tricia <Tricia.Stroud@oric.gov.au>
Sent: Monday, 24 July 2023 12:34 PM

aOric eov at sIC POV
N A |
— DULL.E0V. “‘"_ LWLEONC LDV

Cc: Huey, Andrew <Andrew. Huey@ofic.gov.au>

Subject: RE: Attn Ms Stroud - Non-compliance with CATSI Act/Top End Default PBC
[SEC=OFFICIAL]

Thanks guys.
Can we send an acknowledgement back to for now.

Cheers
TS

Sent: Monday, 24 July 2023 12:07 PM

Cc: Stroud, Tricia <Iricia Stroud@ornic gov.au>; Huey, Andrcw< ndrew. Huey@aric.goy
Subject: RE: Attn Ms Stroud - Non-compliance with CATSI Act/Top End Default PBC
[SEC=OFFICIAL]

ch-. No worries,

| Senior Native Title Engagement Officer, Native Title Unit
Office of the Registrar of Indigenous Corporations

Level 7, Citi Central Building, 46-48 Sheridan Street, Cairns QLD 4870 | PO Box 29 WODEN ACT 2606

OfiC.80V.au

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

From:_ oric.gov.au>
Sent: Monday, 24 July 2023 12:01 PM
_ oric. ov.au>;_ oric.gov.au>

Cc: Stroud, Tricia <Tricia.Stroud@oric.gov.au>; Huey, Andrew <Andrew.Huey@oric.gov.au>
Subject: FW: Attn Ms Stroud - Non-compliance with CATSI Act/Top End Default PBC
[SEC=0OFFICIAL]

Hi all — we have received the attached letter from_(Chair Nurrdalinji Native Title
Aboriginal Corporation) complaint about the Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation
RNTBC and it is non-compliance with section 141-25(2) CATSI Act in its rule book- asking
what steps ORIC is taking to ensure compliance with the provision. Note in the Iette- urges us
to consider using powers to appoint a special administrator.

Can | refer this matter to the native title section to respond to SENEREI o" Tricia’s behalf? Refer
JN1559272.

Regards-

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

5 May 2023

The Board of Directors

Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC (ICN 7848)
45 Mitchell Street

DARWIN CITY NT 0800

Cc: Registrar, ORIC
Dear Directors
Application for membership to the Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC

As you will be aware, on 25 March 2021, changes to the Native Title Act 1993 (Native Title Act) and the
Corporations (Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Act 2006) (CATSI Act) came into effect. The changes
require all registered native title bodies corporate (RNTBCs) to ensure their rule books meet certain
requirements for membership.

Section 141-25(2) of the CATSI Act now requires that RNTBCs must include in their constitution eligibility
requirements for membership that provide for all the common law holders to be represented, directly or
indirectly.

The changes referred to above included additional new processes for deciding member applications (see
section 144-10 (3A) of the CATSI Act).

These changes were required to be made, and reflected in rule books of RNTBCs by 25 March 2023.

The Nurrdalinji Native Title Aboriginal Corporation (Nurrdalinji) was established by native title holders so
that those native title holders could exercise control and management of their native title rights and
interests, including to achieve self-determination and achieve our aspirations for self-management.

We consider that becoming members of the Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC is
important for supporting our aspirations for self-management, and we would like to understand from you:

1. the process by which common law holders can now become members of the Top End (Default
PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC (as required by the CATSI Act and the Native Title Act)

2. what changes have been made to the rule book of Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal
Corporation RNTBC to ensure compliance with the Native Title Act and the CATSI Act (in response
to the changes to these Acts referred to above).

Yours sincerely

Chair, Nurrdalinji Aboriginal Corporation

P.0. BOX 427, BORROLOOLA NT 0842
EMAIL: contact@nurrdalinji.org.au



Nurrdalinji Native Title Aboriginal Corporation
ABN: 32 608 508 769
ICN: 9392

P.0. BOX 427, BORROLOOLA NT 0842
EMAIL: contact@nurrdalinji.org.au















From: SEETER I - - -

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

SO | << 1500622 431

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

Can we send an acknowledgement back to_ for now.
Cheers

TS

From:_ oric.gov.au>
Sent: Monday, 24 July 2023 12:07 PM
O 2o iccovqu>; PO 2oic.cov.au>

Cc: Stroud, Tricia <Tricia.Stroud@oric.gov.au>; Huey, Andrew <Andrew.Huey@oric.gov.au>
Subject: RE: Attn Ms Stroud - Non-compliance with CATSI Act/Top End Default PBC
[SEC=OFFICIAL]

Yes-. No worries.
_ | Senior Native Title Engagement Officer, Native Title Unit

Office of the Registrar of Indigenous Corporations

SR | <</ 1300 622 431

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

From: SEETE I - <.

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

Hi all — we have received the attached letter from_ (Chair Nurrdalinji Native Title
Aboriginal Corporation) complaint about the Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation
RNTBC and it is non-compliance with section 141-25(2) CATSI Act in its rule book.. is asking
what steps ORIC is taking to ensure compliance with the provision. Note in the Ietter. urges us
to consider using powers to appoint a special administrator.

Can | refer this matter to the native title section to respond to- on Tricia’s behalf? Refer
IJN1559272.

Regards EAE)

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















From: SRR - <0 2.

Sent: Monday, 24 July 2023 12:51 PM

To: Stroud, Tricia <Tricia.Stroud@oric.gov.au>;_ oric. ov.au>;-

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
continuing connection to land, waters and community, We pay our respect 1o them and their

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

Cc: Huey, Andrew <Andrew. Huey@oric.gov.au>
Subject: RE: Attn Ms Stroud - Non-compliance with CATSI Act/Top End Default PBC
[SEC=OFFICIAL]

Thanks guys.

Can we send an acknowledgement back to for now.
Cheers
TS

Sent: Monday, 24 July 2023 12:07 PM
To: @oric.gov.a

C.BOV.8U>, Qg JBS

Cc: Stroud, Tricia <Irigia Stroud@oric.gov.au>; Huey, Andrew <Andrew Huey@ogic goy.au>
Subject: RE: Attn Ms Stroud - Non-compliance with CATSI Act/Top End Default PBC
[SEC=0OFFICIAL]

ch_ No worries,

| Senior Native Title Engagement Officer, Native Title Unit
Office of the Registrar of Indigenous Corporations

Level 7, Citi Central Building, 46-48 Sheridan Street, Cairns QLD 4870 | PO Box 29 WODEN ACT 2606

ofic.2ov.au

The department acknowledges the traditional custodians of country throughout Australka and their
continuing connection to land, waters and community. We pay our respect to them and their
cultures and to their elders both past and present,



Got questions on how to govern your corporation? Check your rule book for the answers

Sent: Monday, 24 July 2023 12:01 PM

Cc: Stroud, Tricia <Iricia.Stroud @ oric.gov.au>; Huey, Andrew <Andrew. Huey@ oric.gov.au>
Subject: FW: Attn Ms Stroud - Non-compliance with CATSI Act/Top End Default PBC
[SEC=OFFICIAL]

Hi all — we have received the attached letter fron— {Chair Nurrdalinji Native Title
Aboriginal Corporation) complaint about the Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation
RNTBC and it is non-compliance with section 141-25(2) CATSI Actin its rule book.. is asking
what steps ORIC is taking to ensure compliance with the provision. Note in the Ietter. Urges us
to consider using powers to appoint a special administrator.

Can | refer this matter to the native title section to respond lo- on Tricia"s behalf? Refer
IN1559272.

Regards CRNN

From: Nurrdalinji Contact <contact@nurrdaliniorg au>

Sent: Thursday, 20 July 2023 8:00 AM

To: ORIC Info <info@oric.gov.au>

Subject: Attn Ms Stroud - Non-compliance with CATS! Act/Top End Default PBC

Dear Ms Stroud
Please find attached a letter from the Nurrdalinji Native Title Aboriginal Corporation,

Thank you for considering it.

Chair












From: s220) |
To: SAroud, |ca
Subject: RE: TED corresponcence |SEC=OFFICIAL]

Date; Tuesday, 25 July 2023 4:29:55 PM
Attachments: 230725 Letter from Regestrar. TED Dyrectors, o
M0 Lpng
a0 Do
a3 pog
AmaeC0% 000
230725 Letter from Regetree IWison  Nurrdiahng pdf

Hi Tricla

| will stay logged on so just send me a text to let me know if you want me to send the letters
directly from you or on your behalf,

| have attached for your rn:cord',-

Regards

_ | Executive Assistant | Registrar

Office of the Registrar of Indigenous Corporations

Turrbal and Yuggera Country | Level 19, 215 Adelaide Street QLD 4000 | PO Box 29 WODEN ACT 2606

ONLEQOV.AY

ORIC acknowledges the traditional custodians of country throughout Australia and their continuing
connection to land, waters and community. We pay our respect to them and their cultures and to

their elders both past and present

Advertise your jobs for free https://oric.gov.au/corporation-jobs










’ Awstrulizn CGovermmem

oric.gov.au

Email: info@oric.gov.au
Freecall: 1800 622 431

Fax: (02) 6133 8080

Level 1, Charles Perkins House
16 Bowes Place

Woden ACT 2606

PO Box 29
Woden ACT 2606

ABN 30429 895 164

ST OHTee of the Kegistreie of lndijgenon s Corpurations

25 July 2023

The Directors

Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC
c/o Harriet Roberts

Contact Person

roberh@nlc.org.au

Dear Ms Roberts

Membership model of Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation
RNTBC

I am writing to you in your capacity as a director of Top End (Default PBC/CLA)
Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC (the corporation).

The Office of the Registrar of Indigenous Corporation (ORIC) is initiating follow-up
correspondence with directors of registered native title body corporates (RNTBCs) where
ORIC has identified the RNTBC has not yet made the rule book changes required in order
to be consistent with amendments made to the Corporations (Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander) Act 2006 (CATSI Act) by the Native Title Legislation Amendment Act 2021
(NTLA).

I want to particularly recognise the unique circumstances of this corporation, which is the
RNTBC for 86 native title determinations in the Northern Land Council (NLC) region of
the Northern Territory.

I have met with the NLC on 24 January 2023 and 23 March 2023 to discuss these issues
and want to thank the NLC for proactively raising the matter.

The corporation does not currently have a governance structure that reflects the objects of
the recent amendments made to the CATSI Act by the NTLA. These amendments are
directed at requiring the alignment of membership criteria with native title determinations.

In our meetings, the NLC’s representatives have also raised various challenges for
rethinking the corporation’s membership model. I agree that a new representative
membership model is not a matter that can be decided by the current membership of the
corporation but is a matter for the common law holders for whom the corporation holds
native title rights and interests.



I would like to propose a meeting with the board to discuss the development of a plan to
work towards a membership structure that aligns membership with the determined
common law holders of native title for whom the corporation manages native title rights
and interests.

Can I propose a meeting with the current directors at the earliest to discuss.

Yours sincerely

Tricia Stroud
Registrar



’ Austrulizn CGonermment

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
ABN 30 429 895 164
25 July 2023
Chairperson

Nurrdalinji Native Title Aboriginal Corporation
contact@nurrdalinji.org.au

Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC

Thank you for your letter of 20 July 2023 regarding Top End (Default PBC/CLA)
Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC (TED).

I wanted to provide you an expedited response, noting that you raise issues that will be
relevant to all common law holders of native title under the 86 determinations of native
title in the NLC region of the Northern Territory, for which TED manages native title
rights and benefits.

There are currently approximately 90 of the 259 RNTBCs who have not yet made the rule
book changes required in order to be consistent with amendments made to the
Corporations (Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander) Act 2006 (CATSI Act) by the
Native Title Legislation Amendment Act 2021 (NTLA).

ORIC is, over the coming months, contacting all RNTBCs who are not yet fully compliant
to understand their plans to become consistent with these requirements. Each RNTBC’s
circumstances will be different and the circumstances of Top End (Default PBC/CLA)
Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC are particularly unique.

I have written to the directors of TED seeking submissions on their plans to achieve
consistency with the requirements. In doing so I recognise that as the RNTBC for 86
native title determinations, the rule book changes will require careful consideration of the
circumstances of the 86 determinations.

I do not propose to take any regulatory action available to me under the CATSI Act until I
can consider these plans.



Please feel free to contact_, Senior Native Title Engagement Officer on
(@oric.gov.au if you wish to discuss these matters further with
representatives in ORIC.

Yours sincerely

Tricia Stroud
Registrar



From: LA . <. -.>

Sent: Wednesday, 26 July 2023 2:41 PM

Subject: RE: Recent correspondence [SEC=0OFFICIAL]

OFFICIAL

Hello

See attached our proposed draft response. Let me know if you have any concerns — also, is it
possible to get copies of the final signed versions of your letters? No worries if not but just
conscious we might get some questions/follow up from the NLC once they receive it.

Thanks

From: SRR - - >

Sent: Tuesday, 25 July 2023 4:01 PM

Subject: RE: Recent correspondence [SEC=0OFFICIAL]

As a heads up | believe Tricia will send the updated versions of the correspondence today or
tomorrow. | will let you know once sent



From: SEEEN N - . <.

Sent: Tuesday, 25 July 2023 1:05 PM

Subject: RE: Recent correspondence [SEC=0OFFICIAL]

OFFICIAL

Thanks for sharing — I’m just waiting on -to have a look through and clear some minor
comments — I've asked her to look at it before the end of today.

rrom: R <. ..

Sent: Monday, 24 July 2023 4:46 PM

Subject: Recent correspondence [SEC=0OFFICIAL]

-l

Thanks both for separate conversations on recent correspondence to both Jody Broun and the
Registrar, which | attach here.

As discussed, ORIC welcomes your comment on proposed draft correspondence to TED and
Nurrdalindji in the word doc attached.

Your comments at the earliest would be much appreciated. Happy to discuss timeframes if
needed.

_ | Acting General Counsel, Legislation and Policy

Office of the Registrar of Indigenous Corporations

SO << 1500 622 431

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
JODY BROUN

Reference: EC23-001383

Chairperson
Nurrdalinji Native Title Aboriginal Corporation
contact@nurrdalinji.org.au

Thank you for your letter of 20 July 2023 regarding the membership of the Top End (Default
PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC (Top End Default PBC).

I appreciate you taking the time to raise your concerns and for outlining your aspirations for
Nurrdalinji Native Title Aboriginal Corporation, its members, and Native Title holders across
the Beetaloo Sub-basin.

As you have identified, the Top End Default PBC is a unique corporation, and plays an
important role in managing and protecting the rights and interests of common law holders
across 86 Native Title determinations in the Northern Land Council (NLC) region. Its
functions include consulting and engaging with Traditional Owners and obtaining their
consent in regards to any decisions that affect Native Title rights and interests.

I am aware the Northern Land Council is working with the Office of the Registrar of
Indigenous Corporations and is considering the new rulebook requirements following
amendments made to Corporations (Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander) Act 2006 (CATSI
Act) by the Native Title Legislation Amendment Act 2021 (NTLA). It will be important to
ensure that arrangements are reflective of, and consistent with, the needs and aspirations of
Native Title holders across the NLC region.

I invite you to reach out to the National Indigenous Australians Agency if you have any
further questions. The contact officer in the NIAA is Ms Rachel Kerrigan, who can be

contacted on _ or at Rachel.Kerrigan@niaa.gov.au.

Yours sincerely

JODY BROUN
Chief Executive Officer

August 2023

Postal Address | PO Box 2191 CANBERRA ACT 2600
Telephone | +61 2 6271 5111 Fax | +61 2 6271 5414 Website| www.niaa.gov.au ABN| 30 429 895 164




From:
To: Huey, Andrew
Subject: FW: FOR REVIEW Recent correspondence [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Date: Friday, 4 August 2023 12:17:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png
image002.png

image003.png
Att A - Draft Response.docx

Just for your reference — attached the latest NIAA correspondence to Beetaloo CLHs

From: SEEEA N © - <.+ 2.

Sent: Friday, 4 August 2023 11:55 AM

To: S -
ce: SO 2 i22.20v.au>; Kerrigan, Rachel (Protected)

<rachel.kerrigan@niaa.gov.au>
Subject: RE: FOR REVIEW Recent correspondence [SEC=OFFICIAL]

OFFICIAL

Hi .

Just FYI attached is an updated draft of the response to NNTAC. There have been some changes
as it has gone up the line for clearance. Currently with our Band 2 for review before it goes to
Jody.

Feel free to reach out if you would like to discuss.

Thanks

From: SEN N - <.

Sent: Wednesday, 26 July 2023 4:30 PM

Subject: FW: FOR REVIEW Recent correspondence [SEC=OFFICIAL]

Some suggestions in the attached which | have discussed with the Acting Registrar Andrew Huey.

Happy to discuss.

rrom Y - . <.

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

From: SRR - <>

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

From: LA . -.>

Sent: Tuesday, 25 July 2023 1:05 PM

Subject: RE: Recent correspondence [SEC=OFFICIAL]

OFFICIAL
Thanks for sharing — I’'m just waiting on -to have a look through and clear some minor
comments — I've asked her to look at it before the end of today.

From: LA - - >

Sent: Monday, 24 July 2023 4:46 PM

Subject Recent correspondence [SEC OFFICIAL

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

SO | 500 622 431

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

Mr Johnny Wilson

Chairperson

Nurrdalinji Native Title Aboriginal Corporation
contact@nurrdalinji.org.au

Dear Mr Wilson

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

As you know, the Top End Default PBC is responsible for consulting and engaging with
Traditional Owners, and obtaining their consent in regards to any decisions that affect Native
Title rights and interests. As you have identified, changes to the Corporations (Aboriginal
and Torres Strait Islander Act) 2006 made by the Native Title Legislation Amendment Act
2021 have now come into effect. These changes require PBCs to update their rulebooks to
comply with new membership and other requirements.

I understand the Registrar of Indigenous Corporations, Ms Tricia Stroud, recently wrote to
you indicating ORIC is working with PBCs who have not yet made these rulebook changes,
and has asked Top End Default PBC Directors about their plans to achieve consistency with
the new requirements. It will be important to ensure that any new arrangements align with the
needs and views of the Native Title holders the Top End Default PBC represents.

I invite you to reach out to the National Indigenous Australians Agency (NIAA) if you have
any further questions regarding this matter. The contact officer in the NIAA is Ms
Rachel Kerrigan, who can be contacted on _ or at Rachel.Kerrigan@niaa.gov.au.

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

Subject: FW: Response: Reply to Letter from the Registrar - Top End (Default PBC/CLA) AC RNTBC [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Date: Thursday, 17 August 2023 10:46:10 AM

Attachments: image001.png

| started reading a bit of the Top End file yesterday but probably a chat about it may also assist!

Perhaps if we have time, add that to_?

From:_@oric.gov.au>

Sent: Thursday, 17 August 2023 10:26 AM

To: S @ o ric.cov.au>

cc: I o <o+ -.>; SN © oric 5oV 2>

Stroud, Tricia <Tricia.Stroud@oric.gov.au>
Subject: Response: Reply to Letter from the Registrar - Top End (Default PBC/CLA) AC RNTBC
[SEC=OFFICIAL]

Good morning everyone,

| have spoken to Tricia and forwarded her this email this morning.

-could you please upload to ERICCA if not already there? | have forwarded you two emails |

sent originally for uploading into ERICCA as well.

I will respond this morning to acknowledge receipt of the email as well and will copy in ORIC Info.
_ was working with Tricia on this one and will be able to brief you to assist Tricia with a
response.

Regards

Freecall: 1800622431

T
 vebie SR
B t o email I @oric.cov.2u

Turrbal and Yugerra Country,
PO Box 29 Woden ACT 2606



From: Nurrdalinji Contact <contact@nurrdalinji.org.au>
Sent: Wednesday, 16 August 2023 5:20 PM

To:_@oric.gov.au>; ORIC Info <info@oric.gov.au>

Subject: Reply to Letter from the Registrar - Top End (Default PBC/CLA) AC RNTBC [SEC=0FFICIAL]

Thank you- for sending this response from the Registrar.
Attached you will find Nurrdalinji Aboriginal Corporation's reply, Ms Stroud's attention.

Regards,

Chair
Nurrdalinji Aboriginal Corporation

On Tue, Jul 25, 2023 at 4:43 Pl\/l_@oric.gov.au> wrote:

Good afternoon,
Please find attached a letter from the Registrar.

Regards

_ | Executive Assistant | Registrar

Office of the Registrar of Indigenous Corporations

SO | i cco! 1500622 431

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

Advertise your jobs for freel https://oric.gov.au/corporation-jobs

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

16 August 2023

Ms Tricia Stroud

Registrar

Office of the Registrar of Indigenous Corporations
Level 1, Charles Perkins House

16 Bowes Place

WODEN ACT 2606

Dear Registrar,
Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC
| refer to my letter of 20 July 2023 and your reply of 25 July 2023.

We appreciate that your office has other non-compliant RNTBCs to deal with. Unfortunately, however,
your reply does not address the immediate problem that common law native title holders in the Beetaloo
Sub-basin area and across the Top End have. The issue is not one of technical non-compliance that can be
fixed by changing a few words in the Top End (Default PBC/CLA) Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC’s (“TED
PBC’s”) constitution. Native title recognition is supposed to give us back a degree of agency in relation to
what happens on our lands. RNTBCs play a pivotal role in this scheme. We have never had our own
functioning and lawful RNTBC. Section 141-25(2) of the Corporations (Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander) Act 2006 is clearly intended to address situations like ours and help safeguard the interests of
common law native title holders by ensuring they are able to become members of their RNTBC and hence
participate in its affairs and governance.

In the Beetaloo Sub-basin area there are massive proposals on foot right now that however you look at
them will change our lands forever. We have major concerns about how the Northern Land Council
(“NLC”) and TED PBC are looking after our interests. Yet none of us are able to become a member of the
RNTBC, request a meeting of the RNTBC, ask questions of the directors, have access to its records or
exercise any of the other protections available to members of any other corporation. They don’t even
reply to our letters when we raise our concerns with them. We are looking to you to help us address this
by enforcing the law. It is not clear to us that there is anyone else who is able to do this.

It is no answer to say that the NLC and TED PBC have to consider 86 separate determinations of native
title. As you know, they have had years to do this. They have instead preferred to hang on to the current
model which centralises all power in relation to both Aboriginal land and native title in the NLC. They
refused to help us establish our own PBC and actively opposed us when we tried. It is precisely because
this is no ordinary PBC that we are seeking your intervention. You cannot expect that we will now be



content to sit back and give the NLC and TED PBC more time to tell you how it is going to address the
problem,

The NLC and TED PBC are clearly non-compliant with this important law. They knew the s 141.25(2)
requirement to change the membership structure was coming for years before it commenced, They
allowed the commencement date to arrive without taking any action. They have been non-compliant for
almost 5 months now. We have also pointed out that the NLC/TED PBC arrangement is contrary to native
title law in other fundamental respects as well. We have raised some of these other issues with the
National Indigenous Australians Agency.

In these circumstances it is reasonable for us to expect that you will take immediate action rather than
contact the NLC/TED PBC sometime over the coming months (as you propose) to ask them what they
intend to do. They have had more than enough time to tell you their plans and, respectfully, there has
been more than enough time to consider their plans. We think the appropriate enforcement action is to
appoint a spedal administrator. The administrator can oversee the process of making the TED PBC
compliant and lawful or, if this is not possible, of ensuring that it does not continue to be the RNTBC. We
do not know how else our interests are going to be protected.

| eagerly await your further response,

Yours faithfully

Chairperson

cc. The Hon Linda Burney MP, Minister for Indigenous Australians

P.O. BOX 427, BORROLOOLA NT 0842 EMAIL. contact@nurrdalingl.org.au





